

Part 1 of 7

INSTRUCTIONS FOR A LIFE OF ABUNDANCE

by Son of Joy

Table of Contents

Letter 1 of 777 - You must be born again	7
Letter 2 of 777 - Know my Father as I know Him	9
Letter 3 of 777 - My children are peacemakers	11
Letter 4 of 777 - You are the light in the darkness	13
Letter 5 of 777 - Warning against vanity	15
Letter 6 of 777 - Forgive; the fruit of the Word is your inheritance	17
Letter 7 of 777 - Being filled with My Spirit	20
Letter 8 of 777 - If you love one another you will fulfill every command	22
Letter 9 of 777 - Draw near to Me	24
Letter 10 of 777 - My disciples are filled with My Spirit	26
Letter 11 of 777 - Take care of the poor, the widow and the orphan	29
Letter 12 of 777 - My law is good	31
Letter 13 of 777 - None should perish	33
Letter 14 of 777 - If you do not have a heart for the poor you do not have My Heart	35
Letter 15 of 777 - My commands open doors	37
Letter 16 of 777 - Trust in Me	39
Letter 17 of 777 - I just want you to love	41
Letter 18 of 777 - Choose champions until you can be champions	43
Letter 19 of 777 - Know My commands	45
Letter 20 of 777 - Know who is filled with My Spirit by how they love one another	47
Letter 21 of 777 - The importance of Godly women	49
Letter 22 of 777 - Only My truth is the right way	51
Letter 23 of 777 - Love cannot compromise	53
Letter 24 of 777 - Love one another	55
Letter 25 of 777 - The danger of betrayal and material wealth	57
Letter 26 of 777 - Ensure that My shepherds have no lack	59
Letter 27 of 777 - You have to repent and forgive	61
Letter 28 of 777 - Raise a generation that loves one another	63

Letter 29 of 777 - The wolves and the sheep	65
Letter 30 of 777 - Mammon can never satisfy you	67
Foreword on the commands of Jesus	69
Letter 31 of 777 - Command: Repent	70
Letter 32 of 777 - Command: Follow Me	70
Letter 33 of 777 - Command: Rejoice	71
Letter 34 of 777 - Command: Let your light shine	71
Letter 35 of 777 - Command: Honor God's law	72
Letter 36 of 777 - Command: Reconcile	72
Letter 37 of 777 - Command: Do not commit adultery	73
Letter 38 of 777 - Command: Keep your word	73
Letter 39 of 777 - Command: Go the second mile	73
Letter 40 of 777 - Command: Love your enemies	74
Letter 41 of 777 - Command: Be perfect	74
Letter 42 of 777 - Command: Practice secret disciplines	74
Letter 43 of 777 - Command: Lay-up treasures in Heaven	75
Letter 44 of 777 - Command: Seek first God's Kingdom	75
Letter 45 of 777 - Command: Judge not	75
Letter 46 of 777 - Command: Do not cast your pearls	75
Letter 47 of 777 - Command: Ask, seek and knock	76
Letter 48 of 777 - Command: Worship in the Spirit and truth	76
Letter 49 of 777 - Command: Do unto others	76
Letter 50 of 777 - Command: Choose the narrow way	77
Letter 51 of 777 - Command: Beware of false prophets	77
Letter 52 of 777 - Command: Pray for the laborers	78
Letter 53 of 777 - Command: Be wise as serpents	78
Letter 54 of 777 - Command: Fear God, not man	79
Letter 55 of 777 - Command: Hear God's voice	79
Letter 56 of 777 - Command: Take My yoke	79

Letter 57 of 777 - Command: Honor your parents	79
Letter 58 of 777 - Command: Beware of leaven	80
Letter 59 of 777 - Command: Deny yourself	81
Letter 60 of 777 - Command: Go to offenders	82
Letter 61 of 777 - Command: Despise not the little ones	82
Letter 62 of 777 - Command: Forgive offenders	83
Letter 63 of 777 - Command: Beware of covetousness	84
Letter 64 of 777 - Command: Honor marriage	85
Letter 65 of 777 - Command: Be a servant	86
Letter 66 of 777 - Command: Be a house of prayer	87
Letter 67 of 777 - Command: Ask in faith	88
Letter 68 of 777 - Command: Bring in the poor	89
Letter 69 of 777 - Command: Render to Caesar	90
Letter 70 of 777 - Command: Love the Lord	90
Letter 71 of 777 - Command: Love your neighbor	90
Letter 72 of 777 - Command: Await My return	91
Letter 73 of 777 - Command: Remember Christ's sacrifice in communion	91
Letter 74 of 777 - Command: Be born again	92
Letter 75 of 777 - Command: Keep My commandments	92
Letter 76 of 777 - Command: Watch and pray	92
Letter 77 of 777 - Command: Feed My sheep	93
Letter 78 of 777 - Command: Baptize My disciples	93
Letter 79 of 777 - Command: Receive God's power	94
Letter 80 of 777 - Command: Make disciples	94
Letter 81 of 777 - Command: Bear fruit	95
Letter 82 of 777 – To suffer for My sake	96
Letter 83 of 777 – The good sheep	98
Letter 84 of 777 – Be a vessel of honor	100
Letter 85 of 777 – You are the light of the world	102

Letter 86 of 777 – To love is to give	104
Letter 87 of 777 – I am your teacher	106
Letter 88 of 777 – The Holy Spirit is the power of Heaven	108
Letter 89 of 777 – The true Vine	110
Letter 90 of 777 – Do what I tell you to do in your individual roles	112
Letter 91 of 777 – You are ambassadors of Heaven	114
Letter 92 of 777 – Those who love know Me	116
Letter 93 of 777 – Parable of God's vineyard vs. mammon's vineyard	118
Letter 94 of 777 – To all who say that they speak for Me	120
Letter 95 of 777 – I am the well that never runs dry	123
Letter 96 of 777 – Where a man settles his eyes, he settles his faith	125
Referencing and Abbreviations	127

To the men and women who are as angels, laying down their lives for the generation that is to come.
And to the generation that is to come, who will be known as the generation who ushered in the greatest awakening.

LETTER 1 OF 777 - YOU MUST BE BORN AGAIN

Thus says the Lord:

"You must be born again. Truly I say to you, you must be born again.

I have come to give you a life of abundance, but you remember too much and learn too little. If you desire abundance in this life and the next you must repent; you must lay down every memory and be born again.

Hear this warning so that you may understand My promise.

I have commanded you to make disciples and teach them all that I have commanded. And My Father has sent a helper to you so that you may easily remember and understand all that I have commanded.

All who do not teach what I have commanded are false teachers! They lead you down false paths and cause you to hate Me when their false promises do not come true. They make promises that I did not make and teach things that were relevant to specific men and women as if they are relevant to you.

I am the way, the truth and the life. Only what I command can bring abundant life. If you knew My Word you would know this. But you do not know My Word, so you are led astray by rebellious and bitter teachers who draw you to themselves for their own security.

Listen well: I do not change. My commands do not change.

And herein lays the promise: My commands are the only route to abundance. Do as I command and make disciples who do the same.

There is much that you do not know, for you ask for forgiveness while you do not forgive. And you ask for grace when you show none. You place chains upon yourself because you are slow to repent when you do wrong and slower to forgive when you are wronged.

Open your ears and listen to Me:

Be quick to repent and quick to forgive. Study My commands with all your heart. These are the keys to the Kingdom of abundance.

Repent, be baptized and receive the promise so that your spirit may be holy. Do not judge the

baptism of the Holy Spirit by whether or not someone speaks in tongues. Judge the baptism

by whether or not they fall in love with My Word. For the same Spirit that came upon Me, the

Seven Spirits who are before the throne, that is the Spirit who comes upon you.

For it is written:

'And the Spirit of the Lord shall rest upon him, the Spirit of Wisdom and understanding, the

Spirit of counsel and might, the Spirit of knowledge and the fear of the Lord.'

You will know who has been baptized in the Spirit by the fruit. Those who are filled with My

Spirit are drawn to My commands and because My commands take root in their hearts, they

will show the fruit of the Spirit which is love, joy, peace, patience, kindness, goodness,

faithfulness, gentleness, and self-control.

If they do not show this fruit, they must repent and be baptized in My baptism. For they have

been baptized in the baptism of false teachers and do not know Me.

These false teachers must repent and be baptized themselves so that they may cease to lead

My flock astray. They must teach what I have commanded and stop tickling the ears of My

sheep.

To them I say this:

Those are not your sheep, they are Mine. You are a thief and a liar and I shall deal with you

accordingly. Repent while there is still time and be baptized for the forgiveness of sins so that

My Spirit may come upon you. And fall in love with My commands so that the fruit of the Spirit

may be manifest in your life.

I want a life of abundance for you. Do as I command. Your worldly wisdom is useless in My

Kingdom.

Repent and be born anew so that you may see My Kingdom. Be baptized in water and in the

Spirit so that you may enter My Kingdom.

Come to Me, My yoke is easy and My burden is light. Shake off the lies of the enemy. Love

Me. Love My commands. Do this and you will see life and life in abundance!

It is not too late. My grace is sufficient for you. Be born again.

Truly I tell your spirit: Be born again!"

8

LETTER 2 OF 777 - KNOW MY FATHER AS I KNOW HIM

I am in the courtyard with the Friendly Man, Uriel, Breakthrough and the Spirit of Wisdom.

Uriel and Breakthrough have their hands on my back, the Spirit of Wisdom has her hand on my head and the Friendly Man has His hand on my heart.

Friendly Man:

"Let the Spirit of Wisdom move your hand as you write this message, Sameach. As we stand with our hands upon you now, angels shall stand with every single person as they read these very important words."

As I write these letters, I am both there and here, typing. The presence of God fills this place with such power that I can hardly type. Every ounce of my being desires to lay face down upon my floor and worship.

Open your heart and read what comes now. Be at peace as you read, not one word will ever contend with the Word because it is He who instructs me to write what you are about to read!

Letter 2 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"I desire above all that you would know My Father as I know My Father. Not from a distance as a stranger, but as a son. This is why I taught you to pray 'OUR' Father. Open your eyes and your ears to realize that I have come to bring you into Our family. This is what I desire most, that you would enter Our Kingdom with thanksgiving in your heart and that you would enter these courts with praise.

My Father has an incredible inheritance for you! He has it prepared for all His children!

All I do, and I have been doing this since I ascended, is prepare your inheritance for you. The things that await you in eternity is so far beyond your greatest imagining that your most ambitious attempt at visualizing what is in store for you would be like a drop in the ocean compared to the reality of your inheritance!

But here is the challenge: You can only know the Father if you know the Son. I and My Father are one, if you know Me, you will know Him.

The Father did not come to earth, I did. And when I spoke, He spoke. My words should be on your lips every moment of every day.

Listen to Me, dear friend:

I want you to be family. But if you do not know Me, you do not know the Father, and if you do not love Me, you do not love the Father. If you love Me, you will do as I command. For My commands are the instructions that will help us recognize you when we see you face to face.

We do not change. My Father and I, our promises are eternal. Every blessing is attached to an instruction as it was with Moses.

We said this:

'If you are careful to do all that I have commanded you, you will be blessed'.

This is why We have sent you the Holy Spirit; to help you and guide you in applying what I have commanded you so that you can see the full force of My abundance in action.

My commands lead to blessing! You can step into that river right now if you are willing to trust that I love you and that My commands are a wonderful gift to you!

This is why I have told you that you must be born again! You must be baptized into My baptism and be filled with My Spirit so that your spirit may become holy!

Become obsessed with My commands! Be careful to apply everything that I have taught you so that My blessings may flow without any delays or complications.

The problem is that you sit under false teachers who do not focus you on My commands. They are robbing you of your inheritance!

I love you! Come to Me!

Come to My commands with excitement and passion, seek them out and apply them with all your heart. They are the agents of your promotion, release and provision.

I want you to raise your hands in the air and cry out for the baptism of the Holy Spirit by fire so that all the false teaching is burned away and only a love for My words remain!

I love you so much; it breaks my heart to see you led astray like this!

Please! Come to Me!"

LETTER 3 OF 777 - MY CHILDREN ARE PEACEMAKERS

The Friendly Man, the angel called Breakthrough and I stand looking at a beautiful waterfall. Water crashes down with incredible force that creates a thick mist around us.

Friendly Man:

"When I was among you, there was a thundering waterfall of information that I wished to share with you. But My disciples would not have been able to bare the weight of it. But this is the time of unlocked secrets and waterfalls of wisdom. Only in prayer, in worship and in praise can these truths be unlocked, Sameach. You must worship with all your heart! For that is where I can build strongholds within your heart. In worship you will find truth and the truth shall set you free!

Write as the Spirit of Wisdom moves your hand, Sameach. These letters are My heart!"

Letter 3 of 777

Thus sayeth the Lord:

"You do not realize it, but every time you gossip, you rebel against Me!

Is it not written that rebellion is like witchcraft and stubbornness as bad as worshipping idols?

I tell you this: Those who murmur against the saints and tear down the men and women that I have built up are acting like witches. They fling curses with their lips and call their gossip honesty and truth.

They think themselves righteous but they are completely controlled by darkness. Every time gossip flows from their lips, their father, the devil, beams with pride.

My children are not gossipers, they are peacemakers!

Who gave you this spirit of gossip? Certainly not I. I have given you a spirit of love and power and a sound mind. This rebellious spirit that causes murmuring and complaining is definitely not from Heaven.

This is what I have against you; that you have lost sight of what Heaven is. Have you forgotten that I came to preach the Kingdom and that My Kingdom is a kingdom of love?

You set chains upon yourself whenever you partake in these spirits that are not heavenly in origin.

I want to bless you with all My heart. Why do you frustrate Me so? Every spirit that I send to you brings abundant life. Why ignore them? Why ignore the spirits of love, power and a sound mind?

My commands will unlock every blessing that I have in store for you. Still you insist on speaking against the leaders and couriers that I send to you. Still you insist on speaking against one another.

You have no idea what you are missing out on!

The strategy of the enemy is to kill and steal and destroy. Look carefully at what you are saying about whom. Do you speak as a citizen of Heaven or a citizen of hell? You cannot represent both kingdoms because you cannot serve two masters. My commands are there to lead you to produce the fruit of the Spirit and your inheritance as sons of God.

But you stubbornly cling to your right to harbor bitterness and walk in unforgiveness. I struggle to see any difference between you and unbelievers. They also gossip and slander, they also ignore the Holy Spirit.

I tell you again, you must be born again! Come out from among those unbelievers. You are not on earth to make friends with demons; you are here to bring salvation to the lost.

I have commanded you to make disciples. Do as you are instructed! Teach them to do as I command. Your stubbornness in refusing to disciple others is delaying My blessings over your towns, cities and nations. It is through obedience to My commands that you will see the revival that you pray for.

I love you so much and it breaks My heart, yes, I tell you that it grieves the Spirit of God that you rebel against My commands like this.

How long will you allow the serpent to lead you by the nose like this? I have called you to crush his head, so crush his head!

Go now, child! Look to see what I have commanded in My Word. Hear Me and obey so that your days may be filled with blessing and get out there teaching others to do the same!

Stop acting like My sacrifice means nothing. I came so that you might live a life of total dominion so go now and be a beautiful light that shines brightly in the darkness!"

LETTER 4 OF 777 - YOU ARE THE LIGHT IN THE DARKNESS

I stand in total darkness clutching the hand of the Friendly Man. The darkness is crushing. It is so absolute that it feels like the breath is being squeezed out of my lungs.

I am so relieved when the Friendly Man speaks that I almost start crying.

Friendly Man:

"Darkness has existed for as long as I have existed. It was the Holy Spirit who hovered over the waters of earth and it was by the Father's authority that I commanded light to be. When light was created, darkness fled before it, Sameach. Hold this in your heart as the Spirit of Knowledge moves your hands to record this letter!"

Letter 4 of 777

Thus sayeth the Lord:

"You are the light in the darkness.

I have commissioned you to make disciples so that light may spread to the furthest reaches of the earth. Walk in boldness, for My Word is the light that burns brightly within you and lights the path for your feet.

I did not just commission you and leave you defenseless. I sent My Spirit to illuminate My Word so that My Word may illuminate you. And My Blood made your spirit holy so that as My Spirit is holy, your spirit may be holy.

Or have you forgotten that God is holy? Let Me teach you then.

God is perfect, He is without spot or blemish, His integrity is perfect and His holiness a light that burns so brightly that sin would melt in its presence.

Without your spirit being sanctified, My Word would cut through it and separate your very soul from your spirit. It would kill you.

That is what the law does, it brings death. Perfection is completely impossible without the Holy Spirit. But the Holy Spirit is God and cannot connect to an impure spirit.

So My Blood has washed away every impurity of your spirit so that your spirit may be a holy spirit as My Spirit is holy. And now the light of My Word that burns so brightly can easily make its home in your heart. And as the sun pushes away darkness, you are now able to do the same.

Listen to Me now!

Repentance is turning away from wickedness yes, but it is more turning towards My Word than turning away from sin. Yes, I want you to sin no more, but in turning towards My Word, the process and fruit of repentance is inevitable!

You can fail and say sorry a million times without repenting, but when you turn to My Word it is the light that drives away the darkness, not self-discipline.

But to receive this power, you need the Holy Spirit. Only the Holy Spirit can create the driving desire to make My Word one with your spirit. Without the Holy Spirit you will chase teachers who honey your ears and motivate your flesh with messages that call to the lusts of your flesh.

That which is flesh is flesh and that which is spirit is spirit. Flesh will always seek to gratify itself, chasing after things that can be destroyed by rust and moths. But the spirit will hunger for communion with My Holy Spirit and that is where you will hunger and thirst no more.

I have called you to be a light that creates lights. I have instructed you to make disciples and teach them My commands. My commands are the light that pushes away the darkness and it is My commands that must take root in your will, your emotion and your intellect.

The wisdom of this world is completely useless to the advance of the Kingdom of light. Even when I was in the world it knew Me not and persecuted My righteousness unto death. It is thus because the world is shrouded in darkness and cannot comprehend the light that is within us.

Evil flourishes where the light is least. And all light that is not My Word is false light.

So evil flourishes in the soft glow of counterfeit light.

Truly I tell you this:

There is no light but My words. My words are the commands that push back the darkness and you are our strategy to spread the real light to the ends of the earth.

When Heaven looks at you we see our own light in you! Rise up family, let there be light!"

LETTER 5 OF 777 - WARNING AGAINST VANITY

The Friendly Man and I stand in front of a mirror.

A very well dressed young pastor stands next to us. His hair is perfectly cut on the sides and smoothly gelled backwards. His suit fits him perfectly and he wears a very nice pair of shoes. He is very cool and trendy and stares at himself at the mirror.

Though I have mirrors in the caravan, none of them are high enough for me to see my face so I have not really taken notice of stuff like the condition of my hair. Living in a camp environment does not lend itself to suits and whatnot so I generally dress for dustier conditions.

The well-dressed young pastor glances at me and then ignores the Friendly Man and me.

As I look at the mirror, I notice that my hair is a bit messy and I start to try and fix it a bit (to no avail), and suddenly I feel self-conscious.

Friendly Man:

"He has judged you by your potential popularity, Sameach. In so doing he has determined by your outer appearance that you will not be of much help in advancing his ministry. His is the new spirit of the Pharisee; more concerned with the outward appearance and selfish ambition than with the condition of people's spirits.

Do not concern yourself with what people think of you. Groom yourself for the pleasure of your spouse but do not expand your care beyond that. It is good to be well groomed so that you may show your love for your spouse through taking care of your body, but it is not good to become so focused on the flesh that you can no longer see the spirits of mankind.

Be diligent in how you record this letter, Sameach. It is very relevant!"

Letter 5 of 777

Thus sayeth the Lord:

"There are many spirits, Sameach, but only one spirit is My Spirit. My Spirit does not speak its own words or think its own thoughts. It speaks My Word and thinks My thoughts. He glorifies Me in all He does and He brings conviction of sin, righteousness and judgment.

The spirit of pride is the spirit of this age. These peacocks who are so obsessed with their mirrors and physical appearance are beset with consistent adulterous thoughts because their spirits are spirits of insecure pride. They hate any passage in My Word where judgement is justified because they would be condemned by the Spirit of Truth for their sinful lusts.

My Spirit is holy and comes to manifest the righteousness that I have declared over you. He comes to make your spirit holy as He is holy.

But these peacocks and snakes have a completely different agenda. They preach My Word with the same intent as Simon the sorcerer, to create for themselves followers and worshippers who fall for the sugared lies that fall from their lips. Theirs is not My Gospel, for My words are not on their lips.

This is what is important, Sameach: That My words would be upon your lips and upon the lips of all who call Me Lord. It is because of the selfish spirit of this age that you have so many depressed and embittered among you. Only My Word brings freedom. Nothing else.

Yet My words are not taught. And when they are taught, they are taken out of context and used to support selfish, sinful doctrines that encourage vanity.

The Kingdom of Heaven has no use for vanity.

This vanity is born from a spirit of insecurity which is a demonic spirit that is carried by those who do not know who I am. If you know who I am, you will know who you are.

You are fearfully and wonderfully made and I consider you valuable enough to sacrifice My very life. But when you ignore My words, you spit upon My sacrifice. And when you ignore My Spirit, you ignore Me. And when you ignore Me, you turn your back upon the keys to your inheritance.

For My words are the keys that unlock the heavens.

Repent then and turn from vanity. Turn to My Word as if it is the very air that you breathe so that the spirit of insecurity may leave you all. And rejoice when the Spirit convicts you!

Nothing is more noble than the humble!"

LETTER 6 OF 777 - FORGIVE; THE FRUIT OF THE WORD IS YOUR INHERITANCE

I am in the Tent of Prayer, singing and praising as thunder and hail pelts the canvas above me.

I sing:

"It's the Holy Ghost and power that is keeping me alive, keeping me alive, keeping me alive. It's the Holy Ghost and power that is keeping me alive, keeping me alive, keeping me alive. Jesus is keeping me alive!"

I become aware of the manifest presence of the Son in the Tent of Prayer and I can hardly stand as the oil of His anointing washes over me. I continue to sing.

Me:

"It's not by works of righteousness but by thy grace oh Lord, by thy grace oh Lord, by thy grace oh Lord! It's not by works of righteousness but by thy grace oh Lord, by thy grace oh Lord! Jesus is keeping me alive."

He claps along to my joyful singing and I dance with all my heart, singing the first verse over and over again. He laughs and speaks.

Friendly Man:

"Those who hate you, hate Me. Those who love you, love Me. They hated Me first, Sameach, and as they rob themselves of My presence, they rob themselves of yours. I have anointed you with the Spirit of Wisdom and Might. All are anointed with special anointings and yours is to bring revelation and joy. Do not concern yourself with who likes you and who does not like you, such thoughts are for those who do not know My Word!

Only I need to like you. For if My Word resides in you, My Father resides in you, and I like Him VERY much!

(He laughs and hugs me.)

Now write as I instruct you, Sameach. Let us raise up a generation of peacemakers!"

Letter 6 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"Those hard and stony hearts are not My doing. I don't like the hardness that you find such pride in.

If you cannot forgive, you will not be forgiven.

Which part of that do you not understand?

You stony hearted ones cling to your bitterness so fiercely that you feel righteous in it. And that self-righteousness is like a millstone around your neck that will drag you down to the bottom of the fiery lake.

You think you have My Spirit, but you are filled with a counterfeit thing that masquerades as the light.

Let Me make this clear: I oppose the proud.

Is that not clear enough? My grace is for the humble, for those who would allow Me in to replace that stony heart with a heart of flesh. Then I will be able to place My Spirit in you and He will cause you to become obsessed with My words. You will fall in love with My commands and you will eat the fruit that they produce.

For the fruit of My Word is your inheritance!

I tell you this: bitter people are not filled with My Spirit. We cannot inhabit the same space as hatred. For My Spirit is holy and hatred is an abomination in the sight of My Father.

Are you so willing to test your self-righteousness against the righteousness of My Word? Are these grudges worth your soul?

Repent from this wickedness! You are robbing yourself of everything that I have for you and playing right into the hands of the great liar.

Every time you speak against your brothers and sisters, you drive a nail into My hands and feet. You are no different to those who crucified Me. They too felt righteous in hurting Me.

Yet I loved them and I love you. But My love for you, covering a multitude of sins, cannot override the power of your own free will. If you do not forgive, you cannot be forgiven.

I love you with a fire that cannot be consumed and your behavior grieves My Spirit and breaks My heart.

I want you to grow beyond this selfish view of the world. I want you to have My mind.

Think like I think. Love like I love. Let My Spirit take up residence in your softened heart so that My words may become your words.

Do you have any idea of the power that you can wield when you are filled with My Spirit?

Every secret will be revealed to you through My words.

Let Me soften your heart, child!"

LETTER 7 OF 777 - BEING FILLED WITH MY SPIRIT

The Friendly Man and I are at a wedding standing next to a very nervous groom as he waits for his bride to come down the aisle. She appears in the chapel doorway and he starts grinning like a child in a candy store.

I immediately notice that his veiled bride is VERY pregnant and hear the whispers in the room as the spirit of gossip moves through the congregants. I scan the room looking for the gossipers so that I may make my displeasure at them known. Fury builds within my chest as I feel my eyes begin to burn with judgement.

Friendly Man:

"Ignore the spirit of gossip, Sameach. I will deal with them when the time comes. Focus on the bride and groom. Judgement is not your place!"

I return my focus to the bride and groom. Both, bride and groom are completely oblivious to the gossips; they are so focused on each other that the rest of the room might as well not be there.

Friendly Man:

"There is an important lesson here, Sameach, and it is not about the gossips. (He laughs and pats me on the back as He grins at me.) Let My Spirit of Wisdom guide your hand, and let My Spirit of Counsel guide your heart!"

Letter 7 of 777

Thus sayeth the Lord:

"When My Spirit comes upon you, He will impregnate you. This is what it means to be full of the Holy Spirit: to be filled with My Word so that you may be born of the Word as I was born of the Word.

It was the Word who became flesh and dwelt among you and in the same way you must become the Word that dwells among man.

As Mary was with child, so shall you all be with child. For when My Word takes root in your spirit, the process of renewal begins.

And when those who knew the old version of you see how pregnant you are with My Word, they shall judge you and gossip about you. They shall say that you will never change.

And this is where most will abort the pregnancy to replace it with a form of godliness that is absent power. They receive seed from a counterfeit version of the Holy Spirit and their new selves are born into the false teachings of insecure angels who masquerade as angels of light.

You will know them by how they are completely oblivious to My words. They will quote all manner of scriptures but subtly avoid My controversial commands. Even contesting to the fact that I am Lord.

If your spirit is born in compromise, you will be raised in compromise.

Mary walked in her pregnancy in fullness of joy. It was an even more scandalous thing in her time to be a pregnant bride! Still she bore the seed of the Holy Spirit with joy.

This is very important, Sameach:

When you make disciples, lead them to rejoice in the seed of My Word that is planted in their spirits. Be ready to counsel them when they are judged and persecuted because of their pregnant spirit. And when My work in them is finished, My Word will create a powerful stronghold within them that will shake the very gates of hell.

Raise up a generation that loves My commands. Impregnate their spirit with My Holy Spirit so that they may be born into abundant life. Teach them to acknowledge Me as their Lord before man so that I may in turn acknowledge them before My Father and the angels in Heaven.

The law brings death, Sameach, and against the fruit of the Spirit there is no law, so there is no death for those who are filled with My Spirit for they live eternally.

Joy is theirs, peace is theirs and fullness of power is theirs. I am the Way, the Truth and the Life. I am the Word. I Am! I am He who was and is and is to come. You can trust My Word; it is the map to My eternal plan.

To know My words is to know Me.

Be My bride; let My Word impregnate your spirit so that you may be born again into your full inheritance. Do as My words command. Teach all what I have commanded.

Let My light fill you completely and without reserve!"

LETTER 8 OF 777 - IF YOU LOVE ONE ANOTHER YOU WILL FULFILL EVERY COMMAND

The Friendly Man and I stand watching a husband and wife scream at each other. It is not a cool thing to see and I turn away trying to block out the hurt that they hurl at each other.

Friendly Man:

"This couple have been pastors of their church for twenty years, Sameach. Their church is successful, they have a lot of influence, but the rebellious heart of the wife has caused the husband to eat from the same tree.

A wife who does not submit to her husband is a very dangerous thing. And a husband who does not love her through it is even worse.

As I love My Bride in her rebellion, so I expect husbands to love their wives in their rebellion. Each member of My Body is expected to do their part: wives submitting and men loving them.

This is where My judgement begins: in the marriage. It is why I call you My Bride. If the marriage is out of order, the children are raised in darkness. And I hold the parents accountable for what they create in the hearts of their children. Let there be no confusion as to where I stand. A rebellious wife and an unloving husband break My heart.

This letter is My heart, Sameach, record it with love."

Letter 8 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"It is easy to see who walks in the flesh and who walks in the spirit. For that which is flesh produces the fruit of the flesh and that which is spirit produces the fruit of the Spirit.

The fruit of the flesh is always self-seeking. It always places its own emotional needs first and will guard neither its heart nor its tongue. You can spot those who are in the flesh by their words. They constantly speak of what was done to them and what they deserve. And their lips constantly prattle about material desires.

They continuously need inner healing, Sameach. Even if miracles occur, do they go back to their own vomit because they lean on the flesh and not on the Spirit. This constant need for

healing is what they use for justification of their behavior. You must lead them to My words. Teach them to do all that I have commanded. Stop swaddling them in emotion. You are endorsing their behavior. If they do as I command, they will receive their inheritance.

They raise their children to believe in material things and their children do not know Me because they are not taught My words. Then they blame Me when their children are drawn to the world. Stop teaching them to chase material things. That is the complete opposite of what I teach.

These doctrines of Satan are making wives even more rebellious, husbands even more unloving and children even more ungrateful. Wives demanding luxuries and men determining their self-worth by their financial worth? This is not My Kingdom. They do these things because they do not know My words.

Mammon is an ugly, heavy yoke to carry. Take My yoke! My yoke is just to love one another. If you do that, you will fulfil every command that I have ever spoken.

You are supposed to be different from the world. They hold grudges and chase after money. They dishonor each other and speak whatever the demons tell them to. Be different, be loving, kind and gentle!

You are supposed to guard your lips and take every thought captive. You are supposed to be a fountain of love and a generous source of light.

I want people to look at you and see Me. The way you do this is by loving one another. Nastiness is never justified, Sameach. Your tone of voice and the words you speak - the world looks at this to see if I am real.

Even the world knows that miracles are worthless without a pure heart. They care nothing for miracles and displays of power. Love wins them over and not just the love that you show them, but the love that you show each other!

It is written that it is the goodness of God that leads man to repentance. Well that goodness is made plain to the world in how you love one another. Those who do not love their brethren hate Me!

Listen well: If you love Me, you will obey My command to love one another!"

LETTER 9 OF 777 - DRAW NEAR TO ME

The Friendly Man and I are in a beautiful vineyard. Grapes hang in thick bunches everywhere and He plucks a bunch that we sit sharing together. The grapes are delicious! We enjoy the juicy orbs and laugh as we spit the pips at a stone in front of us.

Friendly Man:

"The fruit of the Spirit is worth more than gold or silver, Sameach. It is sweet to all who taste it and its nourishment is vital to My Body! But this fruit draws foxes and they burrow under the vine, weakening the root system. The grapes are delicious to the foxes, so they rip and tear at every bunch ruining them as they go along.

Take careful note of what I teach you today so that you may guard against these foxes!"

Letter 9 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"I desire to eat of the fruit of the Spirit. It brings Me great pleasure and it brings My Body great pleasure. When you love one another, you love Me and when you help one another, you help Me.

The enemy knows this! So he commissions foxes to nibble at the fruit and spoil it. And instead of drawing closer to Me, you move away from Me.

The foxes are drawn to your sweet fruit and burrow under your roots effortlessly because though I love that fruit, it is your fruit and not Mine.

I want you to draw close to Me and replace every part of your identity with My identity. I want you to stop fighting your own battles and lean on Me with all your might. Let My words replace your words. Let My Holy Spirit move your lips.

These foxes will never stop coming, so let Me handle them so that you can concentrate on being My branches, heavily laden with rich fruit!

My vine is made up of those I place in authority, and you recognize them by the fruit of the Spirit. You are so easily impressed by powerful men in expensive garments that you have submitted yourselves to false vines.

Again I tell you, you know My disciples by how they love one another, not by how efficient they are at drawing a crowd.

Draw close to Me and draw close to those who are heavily laden with the fruit of the Spirit. This life has many troubles and I am the only one who can overcome them decisively! So draw near to Me, and draw near to My servants who display the fruit of the Spirit.

These battles that you fight to advance the Kingdom will never get easier. You need to get stronger! And the fruit of My vine contains the nourishment that My Body requires. You need to become completely dependent on Me. Let My commands fill your mind and flow from your lips.

If you cannot declare what is written, no foxes will flee from you. Indeed, they will breed and produce more foxes.

Watch the words that flow from your lips. Watch the tone of your voice. Place yourselves under the authority of those who understand the fruit of the Spirit so that they may help you speak My heavenly language! For My heavenly language is love. And only when love is upon your lips can the world see which vine you are attached to.

There is no need to do it alone. You are not alone. You are not supposed to be alone. You are supposed to be firmly grafted into the vine, drawing all your nourishment from Me. You are supposed to be filled with boundless energy so that you are constantly aware of the strategies of the prowling lion who sends his foxes to wear you down.

Seek out My commands. Learn them by heart. Call out what is written when the foxes come and they must flee from you!

I see how weary and heavy laden you are. There is no need for that! It should be the enemy who is exhausted by you, not the other way around. Your roots are weak because they are your roots, not Mine. Cut yourself off from your weak roots and graft yourself into My vine.

Again, I tell you:

Graft yourself into the authorities who display the fruit of the Spirit. Seek them out, sit at their feet learn from them so that My words may become yours!"

LETTER 10 OF 777 - MY DISCIPLES ARE FILLED WITH MY SPIRIT

The Friendly Man instructs me to wait a short distance away as he goes to a pastor who tends a garden outside his church.

I am close enough to hear the conversation but far enough to be unobtrusive.

Friendly Man:

"Why have you forsaken My Holy Spirit?"

The pastor is shocked and offended.

Pastor:

"Who are you and who do you think you are to accuse me? Get thee behind me Satan!"

Friendly Man:

"I ask you again. Why have you forsaken My Holy Spirit? Why have you turned your back upon My teachings?"

Pastor:

"Look, I don't know who you think you are, but in this church we speak in tongues, lay hands upon the sick and worship in Spirit and in truth. You are the accuser, GO IN THE NAME OF JESUS!"

Friendly Man:

"I have shown you grace, yet you show none. I have shown you mercy, yet you show none. I have shown you forgiveness, yet you show none. It is thus because you tickle the ears of your flock and do not teach them My commands."

Pastor:

"You are trespassing on private property. You need to leave immediately before I call the police!"

The Friendly Man walks of the church property and I follow Him.

Friendly Man:

"Record this letter with a focused heart, Sameach. For those who do not serve Me as Lord do not recognize Me even when We are face to face and when they pass from this earth I will not recognize them for they will not be in My image."

Letter 10 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"I sent the Holy Spirit to you so that you may be reformed into My image, this so that the Father may recognize you. The works of your hands are secondary to Me. What comes first is that you do as I have commanded.

Every command that I give is to help you be more like Me. I know that this is impossible with man, so I have sent you My Holy Spirit so that you may exhibit the fruit of the Kingdom of Heaven.

My disciples are filled with My Spirit and the world shall know them by their love for one another. For God is holy and God is love, thus love is holy.

You must love one another because this is the only way that your holiness is shown to the world.

But you hide in your denominations, refusing to break bread together. You do this because you turn your back upon My Holy Spirit.

I want you to be one as Heaven is one. I want you to be unified in love. Instead you justify division and walk with secret contempt in your hearts for one another. And in doing this, the world looks at you and has contempt for Me.

Do you think that the world is impressed when you raise someone from the dead? Their doctors do it every day. Why do you think I told those who received miracles to tell no-one? Miracles are an act of love, not proof of the presence of the Holy Spirit.

Love is the proof. Your miracles are completely pointless without evidence of love for one another.

If I had My way, you would build a fire that never goes out and throw your denominations and traditions into that fire, coming together to learn nothing but My teachings and commands for a long time.

Most of you are nothing like Me. You hate sacrifice and you hate Me whenever I ask you to sacrifice. It is not thus because you are evil or dark of heart, it is thus because you do not know Me.

If you do not know Me, you will not know love, because I am love. You will teach love but show none and you will teach grace but show none.

If you know Me and love Me, you will live My commands without ever have even read one because love would drive you above all and you would yearn to gather on masse with your brethren as I yearn to see you gathered together. You would work together, not apart and you would walk as one body.

Work together, walk in love, displaying the fruit of Spirit so that the world may enjoy what you produce. Unity effortlessly commands blessing! This is My greatest desire for My Body!"

LETTER 11 OF 777 - TAKE CARE OF THE POOR, THE WIDOW AND THE ORPHAN

The Friendly Man takes me to a hill that overlooks a border where a squatter camp and a middle class suburb meet. The difference is stark. Green trees shade the well-manicured streets of the middle class suburb and a high wall obscures their view of the total poverty across the field. The squatter camp is dusty. Very few trees or gardens can be seen from our vantage point and the cheap houses and shacks are squeezed together tightly for as far as the eye can see.

I hear a sobbing sound and turn to see the Friendly Man weeping next to me. It breaks me like I have never been broken before and the floodgates of grief within me are ripped open. I cry out to the heavens as a torrent of pain flows from my heart and I suddenly become aware of a sound like rolling thunder as I hear the sound of the Holy Spirit groan in intercession. The pain is unbearable. I want to die.

The Friendly Man places a gentle hand upon my shoulder and speaks quietly.

Friendly Man:

"Whoever turns their back on these, turns their back on Me. Whoever ignores these, ignores Me. Whoever says that they love Me and does nothing about My hungry sheep is a liar. Record My heart, Sameach."

Letter 11 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"The generation that comes must be raised in My image, not in the image of greedy shepherds. For the greedy shepherds of the past generation have set up for themselves images of prosperity and built for themselves extravagant temples while My sheep starve under their noses.

Their wives have driven them to cling to luxurious lifestyles and their egos have driven them to brag of their opulence. They have flaunted greed and called it My blessing. But I have taught none of this.

I have instructed you to take care of the widows and the orphans. I have instructed you to take care of the poor. To ignore them is to show your contempt for them. They are an inconvenience and a burden to you and in doing this, you have grieved My Spirit. When My Spirit is poured out upon you, My heart is poured into you and it is plain to see who is filled with My Spirit and who is not.

I am love. My Father is love. My Holy Spirit will only speak what I speak for He does not speak His own words, He speaks Mine. And He does not speak his own mind, He speaks Mine. If you love Me and My Spirit resides within you, you will love what I love. But if you are filled with the spirit of mammon, you will love what the world loves.

There is more than enough land, yet there are homeless among you. There is more than enough food, yet there are hungry among you.

Hear Me well: If anyone comes to you and you do not offer them something to eat and something to drink, you do not have My heart.

The sheep do what the shepherds tell them. Indeed, the sheep see what you drive and desire the same cars. They see how you live and desire the same lifestyle. They see how you worship and desire the same intimacy with Me.

This is what I have against you: you refuse to show them how to unite. You teach them to love but you do not proactively work to unite with the other members of My Body so that My sheep may be fed. You are turning them into hypocrites!

If you love Me, you will do as I command. If you love Me, you will feed My sheep.

Your huddled denominational worship does not bring Me joy, it breaks My heart. I would rather have you feeding hungry children on a Sunday morning and showing them My Word in how you take care of them. But you are so in love with the sound of your own wisdom that you cannot wait to tickle the ears of My sheep every Sunday.

No. If you love Me, you will unify with all who wish to take care of the lost, the hurting and the broken and you will physically take care of them. Is it not written that faith without works is dead?

Poverty breaks My heart, it must break yours too!"

LETTER 12 OF 777 - MY LAW IS GOOD

The Friendly Man and I stand beneath the bridge upon the land under Michael's calf. Before us, the river flows smoothly, winding its way around rocks and small islands with liquid fluidity. In that moment I marvel at how water always finds its way around every obstacle.

Friendly Man:

"That is exactly how My love works. It flows around every obstacle and finds a way to encompass everything. And wherever My love is, there is life.

Nothing can separate you from My love. It is a fierce, jealous love that labors to commune with My people. There is nothing that Heaven would not give to wrap the world in this love. Angels war in the heavenlies to advance My love. For My will is the will of My Father and His will is love. If the world knew this, it would embrace heavenly love, repent and receive My Holy Spirit. Record My heart, Sameach!"

Letter 12 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"I have come to redeem you from the curse of the law. I have paid the price required of the law and I have fulfilled the law. For to break the law of My Father is to welcome death. But the law is good because He who brought the law is good.

To say that the law is evil is to say that My Father is evil. I am the law made flesh. To say that the law is evil is to say that I am evil made flesh.

For I am the Word of My Father. I am the voice of Heaven. It was I who spoke the universe into existence and I who gave Moses the law.

For the law is an expression of the love of the Father. It is His plan to prosper His people, not to harm them. And those who uphold the law reap the blessings of the law. But those who break the law are at the mercy of law.

So I came and paid the price that was required of the law. Thus you who come to Me and do as I say are shown the grace that is the fruit of My sacrifice.

I am the Word and the purpose of the Word is to bless. For if you are careful to observe all that you are commanded, you will reap the rewards of every command.

You are destroyed for lack of knowledge because you allow the enemy to walk all over you in places where he does not have the legal authority. And with your own free will, you hand your eternity to the evil one.

But if you know My commands and love My commands, knowing that every command is a manifestation of My love and that their purpose is to bless you, you will be careful to apply them. And in applying them you will see the floodgates of Heaven opened and a rapid spread of My Kingdom.

Indeed, thousands would be added to your number every day and there would be no lack among you. This is the power of the Holy Spirit in fullness of glory – that there is no lack among you.

My law is good because I am good and the laws of My Father are good because He is good.

Every promise holds eternal weight. There is no beginning and no end to the perfect integrity of God. His promises are yes and amen! But every promise is attached to a command, every blessing attached to an instruction.

Faith without works is dead. You cannot expect a harvest from planting nothing. The soil must be cultivated; the seed must be planted and watered. Weeds and pests must be kept clear.

Pray then to the Spirit of Knowledge, so that an awareness of My law may come, and to the Spirit of Understanding, so that you may have peace in the knowledge that every command is an expression of My love, and to the Spirit of Wisdom, so that you may know which laws to apply so that the angel of Breakthrough may be able to bring legal abundance to you!

Take special care of those who bring you revelation of My commands. For they are rare and take many years to raise up. Know that those who teach you My commands are worthy of double honor! Give honor where honor is due!"

LETTER 13 OF 777 - NONE SHOULD PERISH

The Friendly Man and I stand in the backyard of middle class home. A man walks up and down crying out to Heaven emotionally. Tears stream down his face as he begs God to rescue him from his situation. He is so desperate that he swings between pleading, cursing and threatening. He threatens to kill himself, cries out to first God, then to Satan and pledges to give his life to whoever would save him from his financial hardship.

Friendly Man:

"It is My desire and the desire of all of Heaven that none should perish. For you were all created to live eternally, and We desire that none of you perish, but that all of you have eternal life.

The fate of your eternal soul is far more important to us than the discomfort you experience on earth. For many of you, times of prosperity cause you to turn your back upon My commands and you become corrupted by the spirit of mammon. But in times of hardship you draw near, out of desperation or forced humility, and your chances of repentance increase. Record this revelation, Sameach!"

Letter 13 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"I sacrificed My own flesh so that you might be saved. And I want a living sacrifice from you for the same reason.

As Paul handed Hymenaeus and Alexander over to Satan to be taught not to blaspheme, and many others to be taught not to continue in adultery, so We leave many of you at the mercy of the enemy for the sake of your eternal salvation.

You regard this temporary life as all there is and in so doing you forget that you will be judged before entering eternity, or perishing.

The fear of God is the beginning of wisdom, and those who do not fear the judgement of God are the greatest of fools.

Hear Me well: it is My grace that allows so many of you to be tested to your limits. It is My grace that places you in a position where you are forced to bow your knee. For unless you bow your knee of your own free will, you will not enter My Kingdom.

God gives grace to the humble, so let hardship complete its work in you and bow your knee so that you may do all that I have commanded you to do.

If you wish My grace lifted and your eternity made your own, renounce Me as Lord and blaspheme against the Holy Spirit. The god of this world may heal you or prosper you as he sees fit. But if My work is not completed in you, I will not recognize you at judgement.

You think Me harsh because your thoughts are confined to the limits of the flesh. But My thoughts are to give you abundant life, eternal life!

Know this: I will do what is necessary to save your soul.

Look then at your hardship and find purpose in it. For whether Heaven closes its windows to keep you on your knees or Satan afflicts you because of your ignorance of My Word, all can be taken and turned to good.

For all to be turned to good, you must humble yourself, you must become a disciple and you must obey all that I command. My commands bring abundance and they bring peace.

My grace is sufficient for you. If you are righteous in hardship but arrogant in times of blessing, My grace will bring continuous hardship so that your soul might be saved.

Some of you are so blinded by the enemy that you cannot see the couriers among you who bring you to a revelation of who I am. You will know them by their love for My words and they will walk in the same authority as Paul. To ignore them is to ignore a river of instruction that advances My Kingdom and to curse them is to curse a fountain of abundance.

You should be very concerned when you follow teachers who do not teach what I command. For they lead you down paths that bring great hardship upon you. Every angel is instructed to first consider your eternal salvation before bringing your requests before the throne of God. If you know My commands, you will know which requests are wise and which requests are foolish.

Meditate carefully on this!"

LETTER 14 OF 777 - IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A HEART FOR THE POOR YOU DO NOT HAVE MY HEART

The Friendly Man and I are in a church service watching thousands of people get healed, demons cast out and given spot on prophecies. The pastor starts to preach with conviction and power and there is a massive altar call as people come forward to commit their lives to Christ.

Friendly Man:

"So far, it looks exactly right, Sameach. He has quoted My Word and done mighty works. Now watch where it goes wrong. If he knew Me, he would never do what he is about to do. But he does not know Me. He knows how to cultivate an atmosphere."

I watch and listen intently. So far everything has been amazing, and I don't want to miss what the Friendly Man is teaching me.

The pastor starts to speak about money. It is offering time. He encourages people to use their credit cards, overdrafts and personal loans because this atmosphere is the exact moment to sow a miracle seed. He tells them to empty their bank accounts and inheritances so that they can reap a breakthrough.

I see the Friendly Man shake His head beside me.

Friendly Man:

"Such evil committed in My Name: binding these people to debt with lies and manipulation. He chains them to false hope by manipulating their desperate hope for financial breakthrough. Most of these will stumble when there is no harvest.

The Spirit of Wisdom produces wealth, Sameach, not the spirit of desperation! Record what I say carefully, Sameach!"

Letter 14 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"You are swept away by the manipulations and lies of false teachers because you do not know My words. They prey on your desperation and manipulate your emotions easily.

Why? Because you do not know My words. MY words.

Every word that has flowed from My lips was spoken so that you may live a life of abundance. Every command and law that was decreed was to prosper you, not harm you. If you knew My words you would know that I do not chain you to mammon but to free you from mammon. I would never give commands like this.

If you desire to prosper, live as I have taught, and you will see true prosperity. There is no greater prosperity than community. When you dream together and build together, you lay waste to every plan of the enemy. I desire above all that you would be one as Heaven is one. But you ignore Me. And look how these wolves dress up as sheep to steal the little that you have!

Let the Holy Spirit work in your heart and it will be as it was at Pentecost. You will buy land together, build many homes together, build businesses together, and dream dreams together. There is not supposed to be lack among you, this is completely inexcusable and a result of false teaching. When one lives in a palace while the other one is hungry, My Spirit is not present.

A tree is known by its fruit and the fruit of the Spirit is compassion above all. These who do mighty works in My Name are not always of Me or from Me. As a matter of fact, they will arrive at judgement expecting rewards, but I will chase them away. They are demons in human shells. They are so filled with selfish lusts that they feel nothing to plunder the poor in My Name.

Hear Me well, child: if you do not have a heart for the poor, you do not have My heart.

This heart of stone is a heart that is produced by mammon. And I have told you over and over that you cannot serve two masters. Either you will love Me and hate mammon, or you will love mammon and hate Me. You think to argue? Look at these who preach this gospel of mammon. Do you see how they cannot teach My commands? My commands are a complete contradiction.

I command you to not store up wealth for yourself on earth. And I command you to stop building new storehouses. I want you to share with one another and work together in perfect love.

Do this! And you will see the mighty hand of My Father pour out such blessing that the world will come to you for help. Do as I command, and you will be more prosperous than the descendants of Abraham!"

LETTER 15 OF 777 - MY COMMANDS OPEN DOORS

The Friendly Man and I stand at the river's edge with our feet in the water speaking of various things.

Friendly Man:

"Sameach, I know your heart's desire because I put it there. You hunger above all that all who know you would prosper and be in good health. And so it shall be according to your faith. All who recognize you as courier will receive the rewards due to them. They must speak as you instruct them so that their lips do not give license to the enemy who so carefully watches every word that flows from the lips of My sheep.

You cannot have faith for those who do not recognize you, Sameach. Even I had to leave My home town because their contempt for Me robbed them of the miracles I wished to do for them.

What the world calls 'good luck' will rest upon all who speak as you instruct them. People will travel from all over the world to have your hands laid upon them. This is good, for they recognize My hand upon you and in doing as you instruct them, they will understand the importance of doing as I command.

The enemy has clouded their minds so that they are completely blind to the power of My commands. Though they read the same words as couriers do, their minds block out every command. They do not realize that the Holy Spirit cares nothing for circus antics but has come to glorify Me and open My Word so that My Kingdom may advance. Record what I say carefully, Sameach!"

Letter 15 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"I set the members of My Body as I please, giving assignments to those who are best suited to different tasks. If the body recognizes the hand, honors the hand, blesses the hand and protects the hand, it shall bring food to your lips and work to prosper you richly. But if you ignore the hand, it shall wither and die and without hands you are forced to eat like an animal, going down on your knees and stumps to eat from a bowl on the floor.

It is the same with every organ, for to ignore the kidneys is to bring pain and death upon yourself but to look after them is to bring forth good health.

If you recognize those among you and give honor where honor is due, you will reap the blessings that God has predestined to flow through them.

The enemy has blinded you to this and you ignore the sources of overflow that I send to you. This is why so many of you suffer so: you are so fixated on circumstantial evidence and so prideful that you are unwilling to submit yourselves completely to the gifts that I place among you.

A courier proclaims My Lordship, pleads with you to return to your first love and do as My Word commands and still you bow your knee to circumstantial evidence and doubt that he is legitimately sent. I have placed a cup among you that creates an overflow of blessing, drink from it so that the Holy Spirit may fill you with a hunger for My truth.

Walk away from these false teachers who call Me Lord but do nothing that I command.

I set among you pastors and teachers who work with all their might to bring you to the knowledge of My love for you through obedience to My commands, but you chase after blasphemers who promise you riches if you bless them.

You are led astray because you do not know My words and you hate My messengers.

My promises are true, come to Me and see that I am good. False teachers reinforce every ignorant lie and those lies become strongholds in your mind that frustrate My attempts to open the floodgates of Heaven for you.

My commands open doors that no man can shut and My promises are eternal.

Honor those who bring your attention to My commands, hold them in high esteem so that the scales may fall from your eyes and watch as I bless your marriages, the work of your hands and the increase of your lands.

I have set among you sources of supernatural blessing. Open your eyes and learn from them. Or are you happy being at the mercy of the enemy?"

LETTER 16 OF 777 - TRUST IN ME

The Friendly Man and I are outside a palace where richly dressed guards chase away a group of men and women in old, dusty clothing. The beggars run away to a safe distance and wait for the guards to move on before returning to their place in front of a door where royal visitors come and go.

Friendly Man:

"I have come that these may know Me, know the laws of My Kingdom, trust in Me and do as I command so that they may live a life of abundance. Their lives are wretched because their souls are wretched. They have no vision. Their knowledge is poor or selective and they place their hope in unrealistic things which make their hearts sick.

To think that I am happy when My sheep are hungry is to not know Me at all. Those who love Me feed My sheep, those who have contempt for Me ignore them. To give food and shelter is the beginning of love.

To bring forth change in the soul is the finished work of love. Now the soul is made up of vision, knowledge, and hope, and to grant heavenly vision, heavenly knowledge and heavenly hope is to save the eternal soul.

If these things are renewed on earth, they create abundance on earth. This will be the core of all that you teach, Sameach, record My heart perfectly!"

Letter 16 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"To love Me is to trust Me. And if you trust Me, you will do as I command. But if you do not trust Me, you will ignore all that I command and experience none of the blessings that My commands bring.

The rich among you think that you do not need My commands, but though you say you are rich, you are wretched, for your soul prospers in part but does not prosper in the things of the spirit.

And the poor among you lose hope and say that My commands do not produce fruit. But you apply the useless wisdom that man teaches you in My Name and do not realize that your soul is in the hands of demons who torment you day and night with the cares of this world.

I have come to save you from all of that. I want you to trust Me and do as I command. Turn your back on the patterns of this world and be born again so that your mind may take on the patterns of Mine. My yoke is easy, and My burden is light. But you are weighed down with lies and false teachings that increase the pressures of darkness upon you with every word that flows from your lips.

Do not confuse persecution for My sake with pressures that are caused by ignorance.

Never forget that it is a lack of knowledge that brings destruction and lack of vision that brings inaction. But above all, it is lack of hope that causes men to give up.

So, place your hope in Me, but first place your love in Me so that you may trust Me without hesitation. Do exactly as I command so that the fruit of obedience may hang heavy in your tree of life.

My Father desires above all that His children prosper, and I and My Father are one. We want you to have the freedom to advance the Kingdom without limitation.

The foolish among you think that We enjoy your suffering because they do not know My commands or the purpose of My commands. If they knew My Word they would know My heart. So they speak in vain conjecture, lying on My behalf as if their words were Mine. Teaching either the false gospel of mammon or the blasphemies of unqualified teachers who try to mix My teachings with the foolishness of worldly wisdom.

If you love Me, you will trust Me. The more you trust Me, the more you will seek out the wonderful blessings of My instructions to you.

I am kind. If you knew My Word you would know this. But you avoid My commands as if they have some sinister agenda to hurt you, and false teachers among you teach that My law is evil. No, every command leads to a blessing.

Pray earnestly for wisdom and revelation so that your vision, knowledge and hope may be full!"

LETTER 17 OF 777 - I JUST WANT YOU TO LOVE

I am in the outer court of Heaven, a hive of activity filled with intentional love where I watch the Friendly Man commissioning angels to serve mankind. Many of the angels arrive with torn garments and battle scars that are healed immediately as they enter the courtyard. They have had to fight through incredible earthly opposition to bring requests here and arrive ready and eager to head back with their assignments.

The Friendly Man notices me, smiles and beckons for me to come over. I obediently hurry over to Him and He gives me the usual enthusiastic hug before speaking.

Friendly Man:

"Heaven is driven by love. It is the core around which all that We are rotates. Nothing in all of creation is worth anything without love. Love is eternal, it does whatever is necessary to bring healing and hope so that eternity may be filled with peace and joy. This is why the enemies of love are the enemies of Heaven, and this is why those who refuse to repent and those who refuse to forgive cannot enter Heaven.

Repentance and forgiveness is the center of love, for without them you cannot be generous and without a spirit of generosity, sacrifice is impossible.

If you cannot lay down your bitterness, you certainly cannot lay down your life. Without love We are nothing, Sameach. What man might consider great exploits are completely fruitless if they are not driven by love with the intent of manifesting the fruit of love in the lives of others.

Record My words with a heart of love, Sameach!"

Letter 17 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"I loved you first. I loved you when you were a picture in My Spirit and I love you whether you are holy or sinful. I love you so much that I have conquered sin and death on your behalf. I love you so much that I paid the price that you could not pay for yourself.

For your sin lead to a judgement of death and your future was to perish. But I loved you enough to cover your sins with My blood and lay down My life for you. And in so doing, I have shown you how to love.

I don't want anything else from you. I just want you to love. I want you to be as obsessed with manifesting love as I am. If you can live this short life on earth loving both enemies and allies, you have made Me proud.

Your exploits in wealth and prominence on earth are as rags in My sight. But your exploits in love are what I brag about to all of Heaven.

Those little things you do for each other, those encouraging words that you offer to each other, those little things you do for the poor – those things I take very personally, as if you were doing it for Me. Because you are!

My Father is in all things. His breath fills every lung and is upon every molecule and in every atom. To love anything or anyone with heavenly love is to love God Himself.

This is My command, that you love one another as I have loved you.

Again I tell you, do things for one another that show My love and do not bother yourself with those who spit on your love. I will deal with them very harshly in due time. Do not let their hard hearts discourage you from pouring out your love upon all who need it, and all need it. Without your love, the world is as hell, void of care and filled with selfishness and self-righteousness.

Do not be like the world. But be loving, caring, kind and gentle.

I love it when you are loving. All of Heaven loves it.

We know what it costs, for it is impossible to love without sacrifice and it is much easier to be selfish and think only of yourself. But there is no reward in Heaven for selfishness. Indeed, if you are not careful you will find that selfishness has an eternal reward of its own and not one that you would like.

Heaven is the perfect manifestation of love and We desire with all that We are that you would manifest love like We manifest love.

So care for one another. Always be concerned about each other's well-being!"

LETTER 18 OF 777 - CHOOSE CHAMPIONS UNTIL YOU CAN BE

CHAMPIONS

The Friendly Man and I move from home to home listening to people's conversations. Most of

the conversations are about other people, other pastors and other ministries. They chat about

politics, disappointment in people and how tough life is.

After a while the Friendly Man speaks.

Friendly Man:

"I set among you champions who are like Joshua and Caleb but far too many of you follow

Absalom and Jezebel. They lead you to selfish philosophies that cause you to think it is ok to

murmur and complain all day. And their teachings lead you to think that the poor are not

important to Me.

I want you to choose champions until you can be champions.

But remember this:

Moses sent out twelve spies, each a representative of the twelve tribes, and only two walked

by faith. The other ten had no faith in God. Their faith was in what they saw, not in what We

commanded.

Choose then champions who teach all that I commanded so that you can advance the

Kingdom and enter the promised land. But know that there is no victory without sacrifice and

the price of obedience is to lay down your way of thinking so that My mind can become your

mind. Weak champions will try and heal your mind, but strong champions will replace it with

Mine.

My joy is your strength. My burden is light. My yoke is easy. Your mind is filled with vain

imaginations and strongholds of pride and insecurity.

I am the Way, the Truth and the Life. If you want to get to the Father you must walk like Me,

talk like Me, live like Me, think like Me and be like Me! Record My truth, Sameach!"

Letter 18 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

43

"I have commissioned you to make disciples, baptize them and teach them to do all that I have commanded. But to make disciples and know what I command, you must first be a disciple so that you are taught what I command.

I alone am your teacher and the Holy Spirit will always lead you to My commands. So those who teach My commands speak as if I am speaking and will counsel you wisely with My truth.

Allow yourself to be discipled by men and women like these and run as far as you can from those who do not focus on My commands. These teach you things that will create disappointment and frustration in you because they make you promises that I did not make and try to restore what must die.

And yes, to be resurrected in Me, you must die to the flesh and renounce the desires of this world. When I call you to follow Me, I expect you to leave everything and follow Me. My Gospel does not work in half measures because a cup of half pure and half poisoned water is still a cup of poisoned water. Even a drop of poison is too much. I need your complete attention and people who teach you otherwise are false teachers.

My commands advance My Kingdom and My Kingdom is a place where you will find more peace, joy and fulfilment than you can imagine right now. Your heart will be filled with joy even in the midst of the worst persecution.

False teachers will lead you to worship success and the wisdom of this world. But those I send will teach you that obedience to Me is the only success that you need and that the wisdom of this world is completely fruitless.

Your soul is where you must prosper, for when you prosper there, your life will prosper. And I alone know how to prosper your soul because I was there when your soul was created.

This is why I want you to trust Me and do as I command because if you do as I command the blessings of every command will be poured out upon you.

Stop following these rebellious novices who do not know Me. They use My Word to create clicks around themselves and boost their own security.

Find champions who proclaim My Word boldly without holding back.

I want you to be lighthouses, I want you to be the salt of the earth, I want you to be the hope of the world! But this is only possible if My words are your words!"

LETTER 19 OF 777 - KNOW MY COMMANDS

The Friendly Man and I stand upon the banks of the river upon the land beneath Michael's calf. He looks intently at the small town across the river and speaks.

Friendly Man:

"A cloud hangs over these as it hangs over many other towns and cities. Poverty is a spirit that claims lordship over the stubborn and ignorant. Ignorance is a vile thing, Sameach, to raise your child ignorant of My commands is a deep and terrible thing.

For you are like a mother who sends her child into a forest filled with poisonous mushrooms. 'Go and play' she says. And when the child is sick and dying, the mother cries out to God as if He were the one who sent her into the forest.

These things break My heart, Sameach: that parents raise their children to be blind fools who stumble after baubles and trinkets. To raise a child in materialism is to raise a prostitute who would sell their time and eventually their soul for things that can be eaten by rust and moths.

These who cling to their worldly possessions and teach their children to do the same pray to Satan thinking that they pray to My Father. They cry out 'Father, Father', and ask for things that please Satan.

If they knew Me and loved Me, they would know that Heaven would never grant you things that would cost you your eternal salvation. If you want to see Heaven opened and blessings flow out, obey the law of My Father and obey My law. For My law is given to you so that you may prosper and those who love My law will eat the fruit of it. Record My truth, Sameach!"

Letter 19 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"You love what you should hate, and you hate what you should love. You cling to the very things that I have told you to leave and those things poison you and depress you.

Again I tell you this: you cannot serve both God and mammon. For both desire all of your time and all of your heart.

If you were wise, you would know My words and love My words and you would know that My commands are the Kingdom. For My commands create Heaven within you and you cannot profess to love Me if you do not love My commands.

How can you say that you love Me if you do not know Me? To know My Word in part is to know Me in part.

You profess to love an incomplete picture of Me; a broken picture that causes you to ask for things that I did not promise. A broken picture that causes you to blame Me for things that I have called you to do yourself.

I have sent you the Holy Spirit, who brings to your memory that which you have learned. But if you have learned nothing, nothing can be brought to your memory.

You are wretched, beaten and humiliated by the god of this world because you are undisciplined and stubborn in your ignorance. You think that you are persecuted for My sake, but it is not so. You are taken advantage of by demons who know My Word better than you do.

Truly I tell you this: if you were persecuted for My sake, you would be full of the Holy Spirit and joy would be your companion.

But you are humiliated and frustrated because you are ignorant and lazy. You are destroyed by devils of circumstance because they know what you do not know. And they depend on your ignorance to push you around as they did Eve.

Paul is not your God, I am. Did Paul die for your sins? No! His teachings are wise and his heart is Mine but if you do not know My commands, even the wisest teachings of man can be used to lead you astray!

My Kingdom is a kingdom of abundance because it is a kingdom of law and order. To know My commands and do what I say is to have the fullness of the authority of all of Heaven behind you.

Hear Me! Those who disciple you and do not teach you all that I have commanded are false teachers. You should run away from them before they take all that you have and completely corrupt your soul."

LETTER 20 OF 777 - KNOW WHO IS FILLED WITH MY SPIRIT BY HOW THEY LOVE ONE ANOTHER

The Friendly Man and I are in the backyard of a home where a man and his family live cramped into a small flat-let. The man cries out to God, begging to know why he has lost everything and now is forced to be a burden upon his retired parents.

Friendly Man:

"This is the question that is shouted to the heavens the most, Sameach. My Father and I are blamed for every drop of self-inflicted tribulation that befalls the ignorant.

In some cases, we take the righteous on difficult journeys as We took you and as We took Joseph, but in most cases the answer is simple: because you hate what We want you to love and you love what We want you to hate.

I came at a great cost to teach you how to be a unified Body, but you refuse to work as one. You insist on acting alone, living alone, dreaming alone and fighting battles alone.

One lost battle devastates a lone man, but it takes many lost battles to beat an army.

A lone man supporting his family is like a single pillar supporting the roof of a house. But many working together to support a unified community are like the pillars of a temple.

The enemy has blinded the minds of even the elite so that they are so lost in the selfishness of their flesh that they cannot even imagine living in community.

The poor are left to struggle alone, the sick are left to struggle alone and their children are raised in demonic institutions to become just as selfish as their parents.

You insist on thinking like boats instead of ships and then, when a small wave capsizes your boat, you blame God. No, We desire above all that you would be one as We are One. Record My truth, Sameach!"

Letter 20 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"You shall know who is filled with My Spirit by how they love one another.

For your works, your wealth and your wisdom are as dirty linen in the eyes of God if your heart is not filled with love.

If you would heed My command to love one another, you would be one as Heaven is one. And there would be no lack among you.

Do you think that there is even one corner of the galaxies of Heaven where We celebrate selfishness? Do you think that the spirit of mammon has any place in the heavens whatsoever?

If you were to think as one community, one family, one body and one vine, you would see what true prosperity looks like. But you cannot, because you are immature and selfish.

This is what I have against you: that you cannot speak to one another when hurtful things are said and that you refuse to repent when you are wrong and forgive when others are wrong.

Do not twist the words of My servant Paul, for he would never contradict me. I am the Way, the Truth and the Life and My words are the integrity of My Father.

Do not assume that Heaven extends grace to those who refuse to extend grace.

Hear Me well: if you do not forgive, you will not be forgiven. Your excuses are a foul odor to Heaven and every excuse you give in refusing to forgive your brothers and sisters is to spit upon the cross.

Heaven has paid a dear price for your second chance. Do not squander it on self-righteousness. You can lie to yourself all you want, but those who refuse to repent and those who refuse to forgive will go where all hardened hearts go.

My commands are the keys to abundant life. They are the keys to eternal life. I want you to work together as one.

In these last days I have set among you those who once again cry out as John the Baptist cried out. They beg you to come into unity and submission to My commands. These you should follow with all your heart. You will know them because they call for unity under My Kingship. Seek these out and follow them with all your heart!

Do as I command, and you will see the heavens opened. Thousands shall be added to your number each day because they see the goodness of God poured out among you as one!"

LETTER 21 OF 777 - THE IMPORTANCE OF GODLY WOMEN

Friendly Man:

"To find a Godly woman is not easy, Sameach. To find a Godly mother is to find treasures beyond telling. A woman who loves God and submits to all that I command is a force against which hell cannot contend. But a woman who demands her own way is a dangerous creature! For none has been more corrupted by the serpent than Eve. And none have captured and held more men prisoner than Eve.

A greedy, prideful woman will whip her husband to pursue mammon so that his blood and sweat may uphold her earthly lusts. She commands loyalty through manipulation and sows doubt through suggestion and though My Word is clear about who should lead the household, she will overshadow the husband with anger and atmosphere.

It is written in Proverbs that an excellent wife is the crown of her husband, but she who brings shame is like rottenness in his bones. And this is the downfall of so many men, that they have taken for themselves women who put themselves first and My Kingdom second. And these men are stolen from My Kingdom as Adam was stolen from My Father.

King Lemuel was wise to quote his mother in saying 'do not give your strength to women'.

Where are the mighty men? Where are they who would give their lives to see the Kingdom of Heaven advance? I will tell you, Sameach! They have shackled themselves to mammon and to godless women! Record My truth, Sameach!"

Letter 21 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"I am the groom, you are My Bride. I am the head of My household and I expect My household to do as I command.

For how do you expect to raise children who will be good wives and good husbands if you expose them to the doctrines of Satan? And this is what you do when you bring that music into your homes. Your sons and daughters are raised by the devil to act like prostitutes and customers.

Men buy the affections of women and keep their attention with provision; and when there is not enough provision, these godless women stop loving their husbands. And within the husbands there is death of hope because they are not driven to please God, but rather to please their wives so that there may be peace in their homes.

Who is to blame for these weak men and manipulative women? The parents!

I have commanded you to be born again because until you can see the Kingdom of Heaven, you will not be able to enter it.

Your children do not know Me, they know lust and greed. You teach them that life is about possessions and so they seek to possess each other.

Never in history has Babylon had as great a voice as now, because her spirit is the spirit of prostitution and this is what unrighteous wives are. They whisper in the ears of their husbands as devils and force their husbands to hate one another. They command their husbands and control their husbands and their divisiveness rips My Kingdom into splinters.

I will return for a victorious church, Sameach. I will return for a spotless bride and therefore the greatest awakening must come about in the hearts of women.

Have you not seen how wonderful a Godly woman is? Have you not seen how beautiful and powerful a praying wife who knows My Word is?

A humble mother shakes Heaven, Sameach!

Pray then for the hearts of every woman that you know to change. Pray that they would see who they are and what I have called them to be.

Fast often, Sameach. Be upon your knees and be willing to shed every drop of blood from your heart for a revival among women. For We have told you that this vision will rise or fall on the commitment of women and you must not take this lightly.

Millions of children will pass through your gates and every one of them will need the touch of hundreds of Godly women. Young men must be raised to see what a wise woman looks like and young women the same. Call upon the women who surround you to show this generation what purity and holiness looks like.

Pray for this with all your heart, Sameach. All of Heaven intercedes with groaning for this greatest awakening!"

LETTER 22 OF 777 - ONLY MY TRUTH IS THE RIGHT WAY

Friendly Man:

"It is written that God spoke through the prophets and in many other ways in the past, but now He speaks through His Son. This is truth.

The Son sent the Comforter, who speaks only as the Son instructs Him. He never speaks on His own, for His greatest purpose is to guide you into all truth. Only I am truth and only My words bring life, because My words are the words of My Father.

Know then that whenever someone claims to speak by My Spirit, and does not bring attention to My absolute truth, you should be very concerned. The more prominent a teacher becomes the less prominent I become. It is thus because man will listen to whoever impresses him and so he is led astray by teachings that are not Mine.

My Spirit still speaks through the gift of prophecy, and you know a true prophet by whether or not he glorifies Me and brings you to the knowledge and importance of My words.

All that I have said: I have said to set the captives free; I have said to bring recovery of sight to the blind; I have said to proclaim the year of the Lord's favor.

All that I say, I say so that My Bride may be victorious. Record well what I say, Sameach!"

Letter 22 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"Only I am right. You may have a version of My truth, but only My truth is the right way. I am right because I speak the heart of My Father.

The world hates Me and hates My Father and the world hates those who truly speak by My Spirit because they speak nothing but My truth.

Many among you fear speaking My truth because you fear the hatred of the world. So you speak a softer version of My truth thinking that you are doing a good thing. But that version has no power. That version does not overcome anything because only I have overcome the world.

If you wish to overcome the world, it must be through Me. Only by My Spirit can you overcome the world as I have overcame the world and My Spirit will not put His own words upon your lips, He will put Mine upon your lips.

You are defenseless in your own strength as you were before I came to show you the way. Things that were impossible with man are still impossible with man but with God, all things are possible. In your own strength you are like lambs led to the slaughter in a world of wolves. But by the Spirit, who leads you to replace your vocabulary with Mine, you are lions and mighty shepherds.

Your strength is in Me, through Me, and by Me!

Your vocabulary makes legal declarations that the enemy uses against you, so set it aside and replace your words with Mine. Replace your mind with Mine because you do not know what is good for you, only My Father knows what is good for you and only My Word and My Spirit can produce what is good for you.

These storehouses that you set up for yourselves while your brethren suffer in lack are an abomination in My sight. They are a false comfort to you because We did not create you to hoard and save.

We created you to multiply and steward. We created you to multiply and increase. We created you to be aware of each other's needs, as We are aware of your needs.

The vocabulary of this world creates within you a lie that tells you to look after yourself. Thus the world hates My Word because My Word tells you to lay your life down for your brother. The world hates My Word because My Word tells you sell all that you have and look after the poor.

So now you know that if someone comes in My Name and teaches you to live in luxury while your brethren suffer, they are speaking as the Pharisees spoke.

I want those who prosper to live humbly while they help others to prosper. Truly, if you help those who are trapped in poverty to rise up out of their torment, you will reach into My breast and touch the very heart of who I am!"

LETTER 23 OF 777 - LOVE CANNOT COMPROMISE

Friendly Man:

"The Kingdom of Heaven is a kingdom of love, Sameach. It is a place where love is supreme. For God is love and you cannot separate God from love. Nothing can separate you from My love because I am the manifestation of love and all that I do is in love. I love even those who turn their backs on Me and follow Satan to eternal torment.

You ask Me why I would allow them to be judged so severely if I love them?

Love is supreme, Sameach. Love is what passes judgement because love itself has perfect integrity. Love covers a multitude of sins, it forgives easily. But love cannot take into itself that which is not love. Love and hate cannot flow from the same fountain. Neither can a river flow with a mixture of the two.

Heaven is the eternal Kingdom of love and the patience of love is present until the very last breath of every man and woman, waiting for mankind to repent of their sin and forgive those who have sinned against them.

This is very important! Record well what I say, Sameach!"

Letter 23 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"Before I came to you, you took an eye for an eye and called it justice. You did not yet know love because you did not yet know Me. And even when I was among you working miracles and displaying great acts of power, you did not yet comprehend that love itself had been made manifest among you.

You were impressed by the miracles and crowds flocked to see these miracles. They were impressed when I fed them bread and fish and followed all the more, hoping that I would be a source of free food and entertain them with more displays of power.

In truth, they were no different to the Romans who expected bread to be thrown to them while they were entertained by the feats of gladiators in the Colosseums. It is much the same in the last days where churches have become as Colosseums of old.

I ministered to tens of thousands hoping that I might reach one or two with the truth of the Kingdom, that love has been made flesh among them and that they are to be as I am, love made flesh.

Out of those tens of thousands, only a few understood My message and fewer still had the patience to believe My promise, that I would send the one who would bring full revelation of all that I had taught.

When I poured out My Spirit, all who received My Spirit became as I am, for there is no difference between the Spirit that was poured out on Me at My baptism and the Spirit that is poured out on you at yours. It is that same Spirit that brings forth the true power of My commands and transforms you into the Kingdom where I and My Father may be seated upon the thrones of your hearts.

Listen carefully:

When the Holy Spirit fills you, He sweeps every corner of your heart clean. And He prepares you for Me. God is holy. No sin can come before Him for He is love and love is a burning white flame that purifies every iniquity.

The free will of man is a gift given by love. And gifts given by love are without repentance, they cannot be taken back. So if, by your free will, you cling to bitterness and refuse to forgive those who sin against you, it is the consuming fire of the love of God that burns to purify and make holy that which is impure.

Once the enemy has you offended, he has you enslaved. For a bitter heart justifies its bitterness and then hardens its heart in self-righteousness. And there, in self-righteousness, the voice of love is completely silenced. For the Holy Spirit is the voice of love and He convicts of sin and righteousness and the self-righteous heart rebels against His conviction.

It is the rebellion against love itself that causes the refining fire to burn so fiercely and for those who sin against the Holy Spirit, this torment is eternal.

Love is pure, Sameach. It cannot compromise. This is why you cannot be forgiven if you do not forgive. So forgive one another. Let love reign supreme. Love one another!"

LETTER 24 OF 777 - LOVE ONE ANOTHER

Friendly Man:

"My Kingdom teachings are foolishness to those who are perishing. They are so blinded by their spiritual ignorance that they carry both religious and secular belief systems that wreak havoc upon their lives, Sameach.

My teachings are so important. I came to save lives and souls. I came so that you may live a life of abundance and teach others to do the same. But those who ignore what I teach will either live lives of useless inaction or come up with their own heavy version of My intention and strap heavy weights to themselves and to people around them.

There is no need for people to make stuff up. They simply need to study My instructions and obey Me. Every command that I give releases freedom.

I did not come to spoil your fun or steal your joy. I came because Heaven wanted to show you how much you are valued. Your eternal joy is worth My life. Trust Me. I know what is best for you. I created you! Record well what I say, Sameach!"

Letter 24 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"Love one another. By this I mean that you should actively reach out to one another and practice listening to the Holy Spirit so that you are consistently aware of each other's emotional needs.

Work hard to reach out and create security in each other. Do little things to bless your enemies, even when they are not looking.

I want you to be Heaven-minded. In Heaven, nobody ever puts themselves first. We all sacrifice ourselves for each other consistently. This is who I am and this is what you were created to be.

Selfishness and stubborn bitterness are completely contrary to your created nature. This is why My commands are so important. I am teaching you to be what I actually created you to be.

Do you think that it was Heaven's intention to create broken, depressed, anxious and bitter people? These things are a result of following the doctrines of darkness.

My yoke is easy, and My burden light. My commands make you so free that people could rob you, persecute you and wreak unimaginable injustices upon you and you would still be able to love them easily.

That is what the Holy Spirit does. He makes you so aware of who I am and who you are that you are able to see the world through the eyes of Heaven. The Holy Spirit is here to make My words come alive in you. He is here to cover your mind with My mind. I have sent Him to breathe life into My words so that they are not just dead things that fall out of ears.

If you hear and obey you will reap the harvest of obedience. My Word switches lights on in the darkness and sets you free from things that you did not even know were bad for you.

Some of you are so riddled with diseases of the heart that you think it is normal to feel depressed and discouraged. You gossip instead of forgiving and you withdraw into stubborn strongholds instead of repenting when you could be having amazing relationships with people who have the power to promote you and bless you.

My angels are commissioned to open doors for you but you slam them shut with your constant judgement and bitterness.

You have to be carried through life by your exhausted loved ones and you are so delusional that you think you are the one doing the carrying.

Learn My words. Learn all My commands. Mine, not anyone else's. Make disciples and teach them everything that I have commanded. Nothing in the entire universe can bring freedom like My commands do. And nothing fills you with the power to understand and apply My words like the Holy Spirit does.

I desire with an aching heart that you would stop listening to the teachings of people who do not teach what I have commanded. They lead you astray with their own ignorance and reenforce the self-sabotaging worldly philosophies of Satan in your heart.

I want you to be free. My commands are like a double-edged scalpel that can cut lies away from your spirit and soul and bring you incredible freedom.

If you love Me you will trust Me. So trust Me, and do what I command you to do!"

LETTER 25 OF 777 - THE DANGER OF BETRAYAL AND MATERIAL

WEALTH

I don't often get to ask the Friendly Man a question, but I finally got to ask Him the question

that I get asked the most: how to unlock provision. To all in Heaven, the answers to everything

are simply to do as Jesus commands. His instructions in the four Gospels are literally the laws

that produce Heaven's incredibly accepting atmosphere.

Not one selfish thing happens in Heaven, every action here is for someone else. You are

literally an eternal, living sacrifice for everyone around you. To the carnal minded, this makes

no sense. It truly is foolishness to those who are perishing.

Friendly Man:

"You have seen the picture of the monkey with his hand in the jar, Sameach. He grabs onto

some food and closes his fist. This result in him being unable to get his hand out of the jar until

he opens his fist again. Those among you who suffer in so many areas of your life are usually

like that monkey. Not all of you, but most of you.

You reach into that trap and grab hold of betrayal or material wealth or whatever thing you

deem more important than My instructions and you refuse to let go. Most times, that thing you

cling to so tenaciously is in the way of what I want to do for you. Most of you go to your graves

with that stubborn, closed fist and even refuse to open your hand when you stand before the

judgement seat.

This is why have I commanded you to let go of all material things and forgive as you have

been forgiven. There is no difference in the spirit between holding onto betrayal and holding

onto material wealth. Both are idols.

The most efficient of My breakthrough angels have to wait for you to let go of some things in

both the physical and the spirit before they are able to put something else in your hand.

This usually takes years, Sameach. Record well what I say and let those who desire the

blessings of obedience to repent and submit themselves to the commands of My Kingdom!"

Letter 25 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

57

"Have I not told you that you should lay up for yourselves treasures in Heaven? Or do you think Me incompetent or cruel in My instructions to you?

You are stubborn because you have no faith in Me. You desire miracles and signs, but you refuse to listen to Me. You are like a spoilt child who demands things from his parents and refuses to accept the instruction that will enable him to create those things and maintain them.

My commands produce blessing. But you hold on to betrayal and blame Me for the actions of demons and men.

You fall for the traps of Satan and tether yourself to earthly possessions as if those things have any kind of true worth and get angry at Me when the trap is sprung.

I have commanded you to let go of everything in this world. I have commanded you to do things My way. If you do as I say, seek first My Kingdom and the laws of My Kingdom, and you will reap the provision of My Kingdom.

But you are so stubborn that you cling to the traps of mammon and commit idolatry. Do you think your golden calf is God?

Your refusal to repent and your refusal to forgive are the actions of a spiritual monkey. I did not call you to be so foolish, yet you cling to the bait and refuse to open your hand and let go of it.

If you seek power as Joseph had power, you must let go of betrayal as Joseph let go of betrayal and you must let go of your coat of honor as Joseph let go of his coat of honor.

The Holy Spirit can teach you nothing when you cling to betrayal and material wealth because your father and teacher is Satan and you are too stubborn and blind to see it.

If you want what I offer, you must let go of what Satan has given you and give me a few years to reform you in humility.

For all that is created opposes the proud, but every created spiritual and physical law works to bless the humble and the teachable.

Let go of that bait!"

LETTER 26 OF 777 - ENSURE THAT MY SHEPHERDS HAVE NO LACK

Friendly Man:

"Sameach, why do you not protect My shepherds? Why is there not food in the homes of My servants? Why do you look after yourself first and then only after those who care for My flock?"

Me:

"Lord, I give all that I can. I don't know what you mean."

Friendly Man:

"You know well what I mean! Truly I tell you this: before you check your own cupboards for food and clothing, before you check your own rooms for furniture, you should check the homes of the shepherds that I have placed among you. Especially those who work among the poor.

Your homes have become opulent storehouses filled with useless symbols of mammon's hold over you. If your hearts truly belonged to Me, you would empty out your homes and bless My servants.

I would rather have you sit on the floor in an empty house with riches piling up in Heaven than this disgusting selfishness that has become so normal to most of you. I want My servants blessed so that they may be constantly encouraged to do the work of the Kingdom.

Most of you walk away from Me saddened by My request to look after the poor. You who are even slightly rich have less and less probability of entering Heaven because the more you have, the less you give. You may give more than a poor person physically, but they give from their poverty; they give all they have.

You give from your abundance and think that it is impressive to God. A rich man has things in his home that are worth an entire church structure in a poor area, Sameach. Do you think Heaven is blind to this shallow greed?

Record well what I say so that you may lay up treasures for yourselves in Heaven!"

Letter 26 of 777

Thus says the Lord:

"To put a thing into the hands of a shepherd who feeds My sheep is the most wonderful thing that you can do. But to take a thing out of his hand is to unleash torment upon yourself. These who take care of the poor are the highest ranked among you.

Your wealth and power are as rags in Heaven because you have received your limited rewards from principalities of mammon on earth. But those who give all that they are and all that they have to advance the Kingdom among the poor store up mansions for themselves in Heaven.

How many times have people put a thing in your hand, raised your hopes and then taken that thing out of your hand, Sameach? How many times have they lied to you about what they would give? How many times have they lied about helping you physically to advance the Kingdom with their time, energy or money?

These that create false hope to boost their own egos by making promises based on hope actually seek to hold God hostage. They say: 'If God does this for me, I will do this for you'. They give almost nothing out of their lack and think that God believes their intent to look after the Kingdom before they look after themselves. And when Heaven blesses them, they spend it on luxuries and get themselves into deeper debt, neglecting to even pay tithes or Terumah.

How do you expect My shepherds to feed the poor, to build shelters or to transport food when you throttle supply that is supposed to go to them?

I tell you again: it is easier for a camel to pass through the eye of a needle than for a rich man to enter the Kingdom of God!

You must praise God for the rich among you who are so humble and generous. They are gems in the sight of God! I speak of them before My Father with great joy because they live humble lives and give the very blood and sweat from their backs into the Kingdom.

If you were wise, you would cause the shepherds to have no lack so that they may easily feed My sheep. There is nothing more impressive to Heaven than a person who can see the value in blessing shepherds. They see that those who take care of people's souls are worthy of double honor and they know that to bless them is to bless Heaven. Love and generosity are one!"

LETTER 27 OF 777 - YOU HAVE TO REPENT AND FORGIVE

Friendly Man:

"The stubbornness of the mothers and fathers visits torment upon their children. You who refuse to repent and refuse to forgive are worse than the devil.

Have I not told you that you must forgive? Have I not told you that unless you forgive, you will not be forgiven?

I oppose the proud, everything that has been created opposes pride.

You ask what pride is? Pride is the refusal to admit that you are wrong; it is the refusal to learn from others, or to receive from others. Pride is like a man who is drowning in the ocean and refuses to accept an outstretched hand. And in his stubbornness, he drags his entire family to the bottom of the ocean. Even those who do not drown will raise their children to stubbornly tread water.

You who refuse to repent when you are wrong and you who refuse to forgive others, listen well:

I have commanded you to 'Love the Lord your God with all your heart and with all your soul and with all your strength and with all your mind'; and, 'Love your neighbor as yourself.'

You cannot separate love from trust and you cannot separate trust from love. If you love Me, you will trust Me. If you trust Me, you will do as I command.

When you are wrong, repent! I have not asked you to feel guilty or bowed low by condemnation. I have not asked you to punish yourself when you make mistakes. I have simply commanded you to change the way you do things.

This is repentance: to surrender to Me. To stop rebelling against My love and do as I say! For God is love. And you were created in the image of love. And all that is not done in love is not of love and thus not of God.

Learn from Me now. If you love someone because you trust Me, this is the greatest form of obedience to Me because not all whom you love will love you in return. So love them with My love. But you who find fault with your brothers and insist on gossiping and accusing instead of covering sin with love do not know Me.

Ask My Holy Spirit to come and teach you. God withholds wisdom from no-one. Let My Holy Spirit teach you how to love those who irritate you. I have sent you the Holy Spirit so that He may keep you focused on Me. For I am the Way, the Truth, and the Life and to follow Me is to find the path to My Father.

Thus the Holy Spirit will save you from the patterns of this world which are patterns that lack grace and mercy. And the Holy Spirit will show you how to walk in perfect grace, which is supernatural grace that extends mercy to even the worst of sinners.

I tell you again:

That which is flesh is flesh and that which is spirit is spirit. If you judge the flesh with eyes of the flesh, you are of the flesh. But if you love the spirits of mankind with the eyes of your spirit you are of the Spirit.

It is this revelation that comes upon those who are filled with the Holy Spirit, that love is supreme.

Everything you do should be about the pursuit of perfect love! Those among you who pursue My power without focusing on My love are going about it the wrong way.

Miracles and a display of power are not a sign of belonging to Me; love is. The fruit of the Spirit is the true sign that you are filled with the Spirit.

A tree is known by its fruit and greed is known by a display of power.

If you want the world to repent easily, show them how you love one another. For miracles heal the flesh but love heals the soul. It is the eternal soul that matters most, yet you pray for temporary earthly riches as if they are worth more than love itself. And in your pursuit of wealth and miracles, you forget to be kind to one another.

Love is the greatest of all riches. So repent when you are wrong and forgive those who trespass against you and you will be wealthier than anyone else on earth.

Love is the treasure!"

LETTER 28 OF 777 - RAISE A GENERATION THAT LOVES ONE ANOTHER

Friendly Man:

"Sameach! Tell Me what culture you have seen in the courtyards of Heaven."

Me:

"Lord, I have seen a culture of care, compassion and consideration. I have seen a culture where forgiveness is not required because offense is never taken, nor is it ever intentionally given.

Every witness, angel and spirit that I have seen and met here is filled with disciplined compassion and incredible wholeness that flows seamlessly from one being to the other. It goes way beyond the shallow concept of unity that humans attempt on earth.

I can literally see the breath of God flowing between every being here. They are drawn to each other in the same way that water or mercury comes towards itself to create one single fluid. And then, in the same way that water or mercury is able to be whole when they are apart from the greater whole, they are welcomed back into the greater whole easily and effortlessly.

I see no jealousy as humans understand jealousy. But I see a compassionate possessiveness in every being here. It is as if every being is each other's mother or father yet with one Father who is both mother and father to all of them.

All are brothers, all are sisters, all are mothers, all are fathers, and all are friends. All care for one and everyone cares for all. Far closer than even husbands and wives!

The thing that impacts me most is the disciplined intentionality of love here. Every kind word, every hug, every drop of counsel is practiced and meditated upon to produce the fruit of security within each other."

Friendly Man:

"Yes Sameach! The fruit you see is the fruit of the Spirit, for all here are filled with the Spirit and all that is of the Holy Spirit is of God. God is love, and God is spirit. Thus, the Holy Spirit is the purest manifestation of the eternal love of God.

This is what needs to be corrected in the Body so that My Kingdom may expand, Sameach. I came to preach the Kingdom of Heaven on earth. I came to bring a subculture that is to become a dominating culture. The same culture that is in Heaven is the culture that I desire on earth.

This is why you are to make disciples who teach only what I command. The greatest of My commandments is that you love one another and this is impossible when your objectives are mammon focused.

The culture of mammon will always be selfishly ambitious. Even the kindest among you will be severely limited in how you are able to express love in the culture of mammon. For how can a man be selfless in a culture of self-preservation?

I want you to love each other. I want you to raise a generation that loves one another with the fullness of the Holy Spirit. Call forth the mothers and fathers to be a collective sacrifice to this generation. Without love, you will raise another broken generation.

Lead them to Me so that I may give them the gift that I have promised, the gift of the Holy Spirit. The Holy Spirit will make that which is impossible possible. He will change hearts of stone into hearts of flesh. He will produce within this generation the compassion that produces miracles.

Truly I tell you: when you are filled with the selfless compassion of the Holy Spirit, material wealth will mean nothing to you.

Fathers and mothers will see the true wealth that they have neglected, their children! For the generations of Builder and Gatherer have chased after the wealth of Satan and done as Eli had done. Their children are broken because their children are taught to do what Mammon commands them to do.

If they repent and turn from their wicked teachings, I will heal their families. But they must turn completely from their pursuit of material things.

Have I not commanded you to lay up for yourselves storehouses in Heaven? If you are to bring resource, then live humbly and provide for My Kingdom, not for your comfort.

Truly I tell you: you underestimate the judgment that will be meted out upon those who have the ability to help the poor yet do not.

Again I tell you: to ignore poor children is to ignore Me, but to help them is to help Me!"

LETTER 29 OF 777 - THE WOLVES AND THE SHEEP

Friendly Man:

"Sameach! You have done exactly as we have instructed you. You have prayed diligently for

more than half of your waking time and studied My words for three hours or more each day.

You have spent every evening in the courtyards of Heaven and seen how We treat and love

each other.

Tell me now, after fifteen months of focus on the spirit, how do you fairly judge those who do

not act as citizens of Heaven?"

Me:

"Lord, I am not qualified to answer this question."

Friendly Man:

"You are wise to know this, but speak so that you may hear your own ignorance and sit at My

feet."

Me:

"Yes, my Lord. I struggle to fairly judge those who refuse to repent or own their side of a

dispute. Though I make overtures of blessing, mercy, grace and love, these brutally continue

to gossip, slander and attack me from the sidelines. Though I cover the beams in their eyes,

they refuse to forgive the splinters in mine. I find it easier to cover one or two mishaps than a

consistent bombardment of hatred and contempt.

I do my best to follow your law of blessing those who persecute me and being kind to those

who mistreat me, but it seems to re-enforce their self-righteous condescension and increase

their sense of entitlement.

Dealing with these types of people fills me with anxiety and dread at each encounter because

they are not very good at hiding their contempt for me and every encounter and

communication with them is painful and exhausting. I feel like I have to pick up my cross every

time I have dealings with such people.

Though my heart longs to see them blessed, secure and happy, I feel ill in my soul that they

would spurn a relationship with me and prefer to have such malicious animosity towards me. If

65

I were to judge them, I would be caught between my desire to see them blessed and my desire to have an environment of peace that is safe for everyone.

Thus I don't know, Lord. The judgement is too difficult for me to make. I cannot read a man's heart, I can only read his fruit, and even if I could read his heart I would not know when and if his heart was capable of change. To spend eternity with people who consider only themselves would be the worst kind of torment for me so I would probably just put them where they could not hurt others. Like separating the sheep from the wolves."

Friendly Man:

"Ah, Sameach, you begin to understand some of the realities of determining which eternal beings may enter Heaven!

Hear Me well so that you may receive revelation! Heaven is filled with sheep who hear and love the voice of the Shepherd. The sheep are docile, innocent, loving and trusting. They are vulnerable and open to love, withholding nothing.

On earth, under the sway of mammon, wolves seek to take what can easily be taken. And though there are wolves who are kind to the sheep, they still prey upon those same sheep when they are hungry.

Even a good wolf among bad wolves is a danger to the sheep. The wolf needs to die and be born again as a sheep. And though I love wolves and sheep equally, I cannot allow wolves into Heaven. This is why he who believes must be baptized out of life as a wolf to be reborn as a vulnerable, open, trusting, loving sheep who follows the instructions of the shepherd without question.

To follow the commands of a loving Shepherd is to be kept safe, provided for and lovingly cared for. Wolves hate the commands of the Shepherd because My commands keep them away from their prey. They will sometimes pretend to love My commands to get close to the sheep for their own gain.

You must identify wolves and chase them away before they have a chance to separate the sheep. A wolf can always be identified by his whispering against the shepherd! A wise shepherd will recognize these sneaky wolves immediately and keep them away from the sheep

This is how you should judge, Sameach: judge not for the sake of your own emotional peace, but for the sake of protecting the sheep. Think always of protecting My sheep!"

LETTER 30 OF 777 - MAMMON CAN NEVER SATISFY YOU

I stand alongside the Friendly Man in an orchard filled with tens of thousands of perfect fruit trees. When I say 'perfect', I mean perfect! Every fruit on every tree is without spot or blemish. The colors of the different fruit trees are amazing. Before me is a visual feast, a spectacle that floods my soul with joy and comfort.

The Friendly Man leads me to an orchard next door. It is huge. Easily a million times bigger than the beautiful orchard we have just seen. But this one is filled with unhealthy trees drowning in thorns and thistles. Billions of trees stand here, most of them with fruit that is so spotted and blemished that you can hardly tell what fruit it is. The edges of most of the fruit are caved in from all the worms that gorge themselves on the soft flesh below the skin.

The most shocking thing here is that these trees gather in very small clusters with their own fence around each cluster. Some trees even stand alone with their own fence. From my vantage point I can see that the fences do nothing to keep vermin and rot out but are very effective at keeping stewards and caretakers out.

The ground is littered with overripe and rotten fruit and billions of rats and other vermin scuttle around looking for the only sweet bits among the rotten bits.

Some of the vermin dig below the ground to get at the roots of the fruit trees and I see how those trees lean slightly as their support structure is destroyed. Every now and then a tree falls over from the infected rot that has set in. Other trees just stand there drying up, bark turning white or black as they die without falling; billions of trees rotting, dying, drying out, and being eaten from within.

I turn to the Friendly Man who looks upon this sad spectacle with grief that has spanned millennia. His eyes brim with tears and I can see every tree reflected in each droplet of grief that falls from his eyes.

Friendly Man:

"This is not what I want for mankind. Yet they reject My instructions and ignore the leading of the Holy Spirit. They rebel against My instituted authority and insist on gathering in small clumps of rebellious division. It grieves Me, Sameach!

Do you see how their fences allow vermin and rot through? Do you see how those same fences stop even angels from getting through?

If they were to allow the Holy Spirit to lead them to My commands, they would find that My grace is sufficient for them. But they do not know the things of the spirit, so they mix spirit with flesh and crave the things of this world. And in craving the things of this world they allow their spirits to be infected with the rot of mammon.

Listen well, Sameach: mammon can never satisfy you.

The wise use it to build My Kingdom and buy land for My orchards where young trees may be grafted, but the blind use it to build their own personal orchards where they lock themselves in with rot and vermin, rejecting every agent of blessing that I send to them.

You will know that the Holy Spirit has been poured out upon a tree by its immediate desire to produce the fruit of the Spirit and to live in an orchard within the Kingdom. Those who allow the Holy Spirit complete control will lose all desire to pursue mammon. They will hunger above all to manifest a physical kingdom of community where love reigns supreme.

Tell them this, Sameach:

To reject My Holy Spirit is to reject Me. For I have sent the Holy Spirit to lead you to Me so that I may lead you to My Father who is in Heaven.

Do you see these rotten trees, Sameach? If even one was allowed into Heaven, the vermin would follow and destroy the healthy trees. Now you know why every tree that does not bare healthy fruit is cut down and thrown into the fire.

If you love them you will teach them My commands and instruct them to become new trees.

I say this again, Sameach: you cannot serve both God and mammon. A person that loves mammon hates Me but does not realize it."

FOREWORD ON THE COMMANDS OF JESUS

Friendly Man:

"To love Me is to trust Me and to trust Me is to do as I command, Sameach.

Share each command diligently and creatively, and invite all who read what you record to study and discuss each command so that they may hear and obey.

For My way is THE way, My truth is THE truth and My life is THE life. I have come to lead you back to the heart of the Father.

Follow Me. Do as I say and receive the Holy Spirit so that My commands may become intimate with you!

I desire a healthy orchard with healthy trees that are heavily laden with the fruit of the Spirit. The laws of My Kingdom lead to the manifestation of My heart for the Kingdom, Sameach.

Seek first My Kingdom!"

As instructed, the next fifty or more letters will be the commands of Jesus.

I encourage you to do research on context etc. for each command.

Be sure to engage with the Holy Spirit so that your spiritual eyes may be opened to each command and you may be able to find the release and blessing that each command brings!

LETTER 31 OF 777 - COMMAND: REPENT

Matthew 4:17

From that time on Jesus began to preach, "Repent, for the Kingdom of Heaven has come near."

'Repent'

Hebrew meaning: Teshuvah - Turn back to God. Greek meaning: Metanoia - Change your thinking.

'Kingdom of Heaven'

Hebrew meaning: malchūt shāmayim - Community under the authority and will of God.

'has come near'

Hebrew meaning: qārvāh 'alēchem - Physical intimacy in the present.

LETTER 32 OF 777 - COMMAND: FOLLOW ME

Matthew 4:19

"Come, follow me," Jesus said, "and I will send you out to fish for people."

'Follow me'

Hebrew meaning: radaph – pursue or chase.

'fish for people'

Hebrew meaning: halieus – professional fisherman.

LETTER 33 OF 777 - COMMAND: REJOICE

Matthew 5:12

"Rejoice and be glad, because great is your reward in heaven, for in the same way they persecuted the

prophets who were before you."

'rejoice and be glad'

Hebrew meaning: agalliaó – exult, rejoice greatly.

agalliáō (from agan, "much, very" and hállomai, "jump, leap") - properly, getting so glad one

jumps in celebration; to exult (boast) because so experientially joyful.

LETTER 34 OF 777 - COMMAND: LET YOUR LIGHT SHINE

Matthew 5:16

"In the same way, let your light shine before others, that they may see your good deeds and glorify your

Father in heaven."

'let your light shine'

Greek meaning: eklampo – Shine outwards.

Hebrew meaning: yapha – To shine out or forth, to send out beams.

'Good deeds'

Greek meaning: ergon – results, accomplished works, what has been done.

Isaiah 58:9b-10

"Remove the heavy yoke of oppression. Stop pointing your finger and spreading vicious rumors! Feed

the hungry, and help those in trouble. Then your light will shine out from the darkness, and the

darkness around you will be as bright as noon."

71

LETTER 35 OF 777 - COMMAND: HONOR GOD'S LAW

Matthew 5:17-19

"Do not think that I have come to abolish the Law or the Prophets; I have not come to abolish them but

to fulfill them. For truly I tell you, until heaven and earth disappear, not the smallest letter, not the least

stroke of a pen, will by any means disappear from the Law until everything is accomplished. Therefore

anyone who sets aside one of the least of these commands and teaches others accordingly will be called

least in the Kingdom of Heaven, but whoever practices and teaches these commands will be called

great in the Kingdom of Heaven."

LETTER 36 OF 777 - COMMAND: RECONCILE

Matthew 5:23-24

"If you are offering your gift at the altar and there remember that your brother or sister has something

against you, leave your gift there in front of the altar. First go and be reconciled to them; then come

and offer your gift."

'Reconcile'

katallagé - reconciliation (restoration) as the resulting of Christ exactly (precisely) exchanging

His righteousness (blood) for our guilt.

To lay vindication upon the altar in favor of restitution. If this is unsuccessful then Matthew

18:17.

72

LETTER 37 OF 777 - COMMAND: DO NOT COMMIT ADULTERY

Matthew 5:27-30

"You have heard that it was said, 'You shall not commit adultery'. But I tell you that anyone who looks

at a woman lustfully has already committed adultery with her in his heart. If your right eye causes you

to stumble, gouge it out and throw it away. It is better for you to lose one part of your body than for

your whole body to be thrown into hell. And if your right hand causes you to stumble, cut it off and

throw it away. It is better for you to lose one part of your body than for your whole body to go into hell."

LETTER 38 OF 777 - COMMAND: KEEP YOUR WORD

Matthew 5:34-37

"Do not swear an oath at all: either by heaven, for it is God's throne; or by the earth, for it is his

footstool; or by Jerusalem, for it is the city of the Great King. And do not swear by your head, for you

cannot make even one hair white or black. All you need to say is simply 'Yes' or 'No'; anything more

than that come from the evil one."

LETTER 39 OF 777 - COMMAND: GO THE SECOND MILE

Matthew 5:38-42

"You have heard that it was said, 'Eye for eye, and tooth for tooth.' But I tell you, do not resist an evil

person. If anyone slaps you on the right cheek, turn to them the other cheek also. And if anyone wants to

sue you and take your shirt, hand over your coat as well. If anyone forces you to go one mile, go with

them two miles. Give to the one who asks you, and do not turn away from the one who wants to borrow

from you."

LETTER 40 OF 777 - COMMAND: LOVE YOUR ENEMIES

Matthew 5:43-45

"You have heard that it was said, 'You shall love your neighbour and hate your enemy.' But I say to

you, love your enemies, bless those who curse you, do good to those who hate you, and pray for those

who spitefully use you and persecute you, that you may be sons of your Father in heaven."

LETTER 41 OF 777 - COMMAND: BE PERFECT

Matthew 5:48

"In a word, what I'm saying is, Grow up. You're kingdom subjects. Now live like it. Live out your God-

created identity. Live generously and graciously toward others, the way God lives toward you."

LETTER 42 OF 777 - COMMAND: PRACTICE SECRET DISCIPLINES

Matthew 6: 1,6

¹ "Be careful not to practice your righteousness in front of others to be seen by them. If you do, you will

have no reward from your Father in heaven."

⁶ "But when you pray, go into your room, close the door and pray to your Father, who is unseen. Then

your Father, who sees what is done in secret, will reward you."

LETTER 43 OF 777 - COMMAND: LAY-UP TREASURES IN HEAVEN

Matthew 6:19-21

"Do not store up for yourselves treasures on earth, where moths and vermin destroy, and where thieves

break in and steal. But store up for yourselves treasures in heaven, where moths and vermin do not

destroy, and where thieves do not break in and steal. For where your treasure is, there your heart will

be also."

LETTER 44 OF 777 - COMMAND: SEEK FIRST GOD'S KINGDOM

Matthew 6:31-33

"So do not worry, saying, 'What shall we eat?' or 'What shall we drink?' or 'What shall we wear?' For

the pagans run after all these things, and your heavenly Father knows that you need them. But seek first

his kingdom and his righteousness, and all these things will be given to you as well."

LETTER 45 OF 777 - COMMAND: JUDGE NOT

Matthew 7:1-2

"Do not judge, or you too will be judged. For in the same way you judge others, you will be judged, and

with the measure you use, it will be measured to you"

LETTER 46 OF 777 - COMMAND: DO NOT CAST YOUR PEARLS

Matthew 7:6

"Do not give dogs what is holy; do not throw your pearls before swine. If you do, they may trample

them under their feet, and then turn and tear you to pieces."

LETTER 47 OF 777 - COMMAND: ASK, SEEK AND KNOCK

Matthew 7:7-8

"Ask and it will be given to you¹; seek and you will find; knock and the door will be opened to you. For everyone who asks receives; the one who seeks finds; and to the one who knocks, the door will be opened."

James 4:3

"When you ask, you do not receive, because you ask with wrong motives, that you may spend what you get on your pleasures."

1 Peter 3:12

"For the eyes of the Lord are on the righteous and his ears are attentive to their prayer, but the face of the Lord is against those who do evil."

LETTER 48 OF 777 - COMMAND: WORSHIP IN THE SPIRIT AND TRUTH

John 4:24

"God is spirit, and his worshipers must worship in the Spirit and in truth."

LETTER 49 OF 777 - COMMAND: DO UNTO OTHERS

Matthew 7:12

"So in everything, do to others what you would have them do to you, for this sums up the Law and the Prophets."

¹ The 'you' is the righteous, those who know His word and ask in line with kingdom priorities.

LETTER 50 OF 777 - COMMAND: CHOOSE THE NARROW WAY

Matthew 7:13-14

"Enter through the narrow gate. For wide is the gate and broad is the road that leads to destruction, and many enter through it. But small is the gate and narrow the road that leads to life, and only a few find it."

LETTER 51 OF 777 - COMMAND: BEWARE OF FALSE PROPHETS

Matthew 7:15-17 (KJV)

"Beware of false prophets, which come to you in sheep's clothing, but inwardly they are ravening wolves. Ye shall know them by their fruits. Do men gather grapes of thorns, or figs of thistles? Even so every good tree bringeth forth good fruit; but a corrupt tree bringeth forth evil fruit."

LETTER 52 OF 777 - COMMAND: PRAY FOR THE LABORERS

Matthew 9:37-38

"Then he said to his disciples, 'The harvest is plentiful but the workers are few. Ask the Lord of the harvest, therefore, to send out workers into his harvest field.'"

Acts 20:35

"In all things I have shown you that by working hard in this way we must help the weak and remember the words of the Lord Jesus, how he himself said, 'It is more blessed to give than to receive.'"

Colossians 3:23-24

"Whatever you do, work heartily, as for the Lord and not for men, knowing that from the Lord you will receive the inheritance as your reward. You are serving the Lord Christ."

LETTER 53 OF 777 - COMMAND: BE WISE AS SERPENTS

Matthew 10:16

"Look, I am sending you out like sheep among wolves; therefore be as shrewd as snakes and as innocent as doves."

LETTER 54 OF 777 - COMMAND: FEAR GOD, NOT MAN

Matthew 10:26-31

"So do not be afraid of them, for there is nothing concealed that will not be disclosed, or hidden that

will not be made known. What I tell you in the dark, speak in the daylight; what is whispered in your

ear, proclaim from the roofs. Do not be afraid of those who kill the body but cannot kill the soul. Rather,

be afraid of the One who can destroy both soul and body in hell. Are not two sparrows sold for a

penny? Yet not one of them will fall to the ground outside your Father's care. And even the very hairs of

your head are all numbered. So don't be afraid; you are worth more than many sparrows."

LETTER 55 OF 777 - COMMAND: HEAR GOD'S VOICE

Matthew 11:15

"You people who hear me, listen!"

LETTER 56 OF 777 - COMMAND: TAKE MY YOKE

Matthew 11:29-30

"Take my yoke upon you and learn from me, for I am gentle and humble in heart, and you will find rest

for your souls. For My yoke is easy and My burden is light."

LETTER 57 OF 777 - COMMAND: HONOR YOUR PARENTS

Matthew 19:19

"Honor your father and mother, and, You shall love your neighbor as yourself."

LETTER 58 OF 777 - COMMAND: BEWARE OF LEAVEN

Matthew 16:6,12

⁶ "Be careful," Jesus said to them. "Be on your guard against the yeast of the Pharisees and Sadducees."

¹² Then they understood that he was not telling them to guard against the yeast used in bread, but against the teaching of the Pharisees and Sadducees."

2 Corinthians 11:13-15

"For such men are false apostles, deceitful workmen, disguising themselves as apostles of Christ. And no wonder, for even Satan disguises himself as an angel of light. So it is no surprise if his servants, also, disguise themselves as servants of righteousness. Their end will correspond to their deeds."

Galatians 1:8

"But even if we or an angel from heaven should preach to you a gospel contrary to the one we preached to you, let him be accursed."

LETTER 59 OF 777 - COMMAND: DENY YOURSELF

Luke 9:23-24

"Then he said to them all: 'Whoever wants to be my disciple must deny themselves and take up their cross daily and follow me. For whoever wants to save their life will lose it, but whoever loses their life for me will save it.'"

Luke 9:23

"And he said to all, 'If anyone would come after me, let him deny himself and take up his cross daily and follow me.'"

Mark 8:34

"If anyone would come after me, let him deny himself and take up his cross and follow me."

Galatians 2:20

"I have been crucified with Christ. It is no longer I who live, but Christ who lives in me."

1 John 2:15

"Do not love the world or the things in the world. If anyone loves the world, the love of the Father is not in him."

2 Corinthians 5:15

"and he died for all, that those who live might no longer live for themselves but for him who for their sake died and was raised."

LETTER 60 OF 777 - COMMAND: GO TO OFFENDERS

Matthew 18:15-17

"If your brother or sister sins, go and point out their fault, just between the two of you. If they listen to

you, you have won them over. But if they will not listen, take one or two others along, so that 'every

matter may be established by the testimony of two or three witnesses.' If they still refuse to listen, tell it

to the church; and if they refuse to listen even to the church, treat them as you would a pagan or a tax

collector."

LETTER 61 OF 777 - COMMAND: DESPISE NOT THE LITTLE ONES

Matthew 18:10

"See that you do not despise one of these little ones (children and young believers). For I tell you that

their angels (spiritual guardians) in heaven always see the face of my Father in heaven (and give

reports on how children are raised/treated)."

Matthew 18:6-7

"If anyone causes one of these little ones—those who believe in me—to stumble, it would be better for

them to have a large millstone hung around their neck and to be drowned in the depths of the sea. Woe

to the world because of the things that cause people to stumble! Such things must come, but woe to the

person through whom they come!"

LETTER 62 OF 777 - COMMAND: FORGIVE OFFENDERS

Matthew 18:21-22

"Then Peter came to Jesus and asked, 'Lord, how many times shall I forgive my brother or sister who sins against me? Up to seven times?'

Jesus answered, "I tell you, not seven times, but seventy-seven times."

Matthew 6:14-15

"For if you forgive others their trespasses, your heavenly Father will also forgive you, but if you do not forgive others their trespasses, neither will your Father forgive your trespasses."

Ephesians 4:32

"Be kind to one another, tender hearted, forgiving one another, as God in Christ forgave you."

Luke 6:37

"Judge not, and you will not be judged; condemn not, and you will not be condemned; forgive, and you will be forgiven."

Proverbs 10:12

"Hatred stirs up strife, but love covers all offenses."

LETTER 63 OF 777 - COMMAND: BEWARE OF COVETOUSNESS

Luke 12:15

"Then he said to them, 'Watch out! Be on your guard against all kinds of greed; life does not consist in an abundance of possessions.'"

1 Timothy 6:10

"For the love of money is a root of all kinds of evils. It is through this craving that some have wandered away from the faith and pierced themselves with many pangs."

1 Timothy 6:9

"But those who desire to be rich fall into temptation, into a snare, into many senseless and harmful desires that plunge people into ruin and destruction."

Proverbs 28:25

"A greedy man stirs up strife, but the one who trusts in the Lord will be enriched."

Hebrews 13:5

"Keep your life free from love of money, and be content with what you have, for he has said, 'I will never leave you nor forsake you.'"

Matthew 6:24

"No one can serve two masters, for either he will hate the one and love the other, or he will be devoted to the one and despise the other. You cannot serve God and money."

1 John 2:16

"For all that is in the world—the desires of the flesh and the desires of the eyes and pride in possessions—is not from the Father but is from the world."

LETTER 64 OF 777 - COMMAND: HONOR MARRIAGE

Matthew 19:6²

"So they are no longer two, but one flesh. Therefore what God has joined together, let no one separate."

Matthew 19:9

"And I say to you, whoever divorces his wife, except for sexual immorality, and marries another, commits adultery; and whoever marries her who is divorced commits adultery."

Paul addresses the subject for Gentiles (people outside Torah culture) here:

1 Corinthians 7:15

"But if the unbeliever leaves, let him go. The believing brother or sister is not bound in such cases."

And again here in the case of a husband dying:

1 Corinthians 7:39

"A wife is bound to her husband as long as he lives. But if her husband dies, she is free to be married to whom she wishes, only in the Lord."

² The context is important here for divorced women: Jesus was specifically addressing Jews there because a divorced woman was considered 'used goods' in a very law focused patriarchal society. It was almost impossible for her to survive if she was single.

LETTER 65 OF 777 - COMMAND: BE A SERVANT

Matthew 20:25-28

"Jesus called them together and said, 'You know that the rulers of the Gentiles lord it over them, and their high officials exercise authority over them. Not so with you. Instead, whoever wants to become great among you must be your servant, and whoever wants to be first must be your slave—just as the Son of Man did not come to be served, but to serve, and to give his life as a ransom for many."

1 Corinthians 9:19

"For though I am free from all, I have made myself a servant to all, that I might win more of them."

Galatians 5:13

"For you were called to freedom, brothers. Only do not use your freedom as an opportunity for the flesh, but through love serve one another."

1 Peter 4:10

"As each has received a gift, use it to serve one another, as good stewards of God's varied grace."

LETTER 66 OF 777 - COMMAND: BE A HOUSE OF PRAYER

Matthew 21:13-14

"'It is written,' he said to them, 'My house will be called a house of prayer', but you are making it a den of robbers.'"

Jeremiah 6:13

"For from the least to the greatest of them, everyone is greedy for unjust gain; and from prophet to priest, everyone deals falsely.

1 Timothy 6:9-10

"But those who desire to be rich fall into temptation, into a snare, into many senseless and harmful desires that plunge people into ruin and destruction.

For the love of money is a root of all kinds of evils. It is through this craving that some have wandered away from the faith and pierced themselves with many pangs."

Luke 12:15

"And he said to them, 'Take care, and be on your guard against all covetousness, for one's life does not consist in the abundance of his possessions."

Matthew 6:24

"No one can serve two masters, for either he will hate the one and love the other, or he will be devoted to the one and despise the other. You cannot serve God and money."

LETTER 67 OF 777 - COMMAND: ASK IN FAITH

Matthew 21:21-22 21

"Jesus replied, 'Truly I tell you, if you have faith and do not doubt, not only can you do what was done

to the fig tree, but also you can say to this mountain, 'Go, throw yourself into the sea,' and it will be

done. If you believe, you will receive whatever you ask for in prayer.""

Hebrews 11:6

"And it is impossible to please God without faith. Anyone who wants to come to him must believe that

God exists and that he rewards those who sincerely seek him."

Mark 11:22-24

"And Jesus answered them, "Have faith in God. Truly, I say to you, whoever says to this mountain, 'Be

taken up and thrown into the sea,' and does not doubt in his heart, but believes that what he says will

come to pass, it will be done for him. Therefore I tell you, whatever you ask in prayer, believe that you

have received it, and it will be yours."

Luke 1:37

"For nothing will be impossible with God."

2 Corinthians 5:7

"For we walk by faith, not by sight."

LETTER 68 OF 777 - COMMAND: BRING IN THE POOR

Luke 14:12-14

"Then Jesus said to his host, 'When you give a luncheon or dinner, do not invite your friends, your brothers or sisters, your relatives, or your rich neighbors; if you do, they may invite you back and so you will be repaid. But when you give a banquet, invite the poor, the crippled, the lame, the blind, and you will be blessed. Although they cannot repay you, you will be repaid at the resurrection of the righteous.'"

Proverbs 19:17

"Whoever is generous to the poor lends to the Lord, and he will repay him for his deed."

1 John 3:17-18

"But if anyone has the world's goods and sees his brother in need, yet closes his heart against him, how does God's love abide in him? Little children, let us not love in word or talk but in deed and in truth."

Proverbs 14:31

"Whoever oppresses a poor man insults his Maker, but he who is generous to the needy honors his maker."

Acts 20:35

"In all things I have shown you that by working hard in this way we must help the weak and remember the words of the Lord Jesus, how he himself said, 'It is more blessed to give than to receive.'"

LETTER 69 OF 777 - COMMAND: RENDER TO CAESAR

Matthew 22:19-21

"Show me the coin used for paying the tax." They brought him a denarius, and he asked them, 'Whose

image is this? And whose inscription?'

'Caesar's,' they replied.

Then he said to them, 'So give back to Caesar what is Caesar's, and to God what is God's.'"

LETTER 70 OF 777 - COMMAND: LOVE THE LORD

Matthew 22:37-38

"Jesus replied: 'Love the Lord your God with all your heart and with all your soul and with all your

mind.' This is the first and greatest commandment."

LETTER 71 OF 777 - COMMAND: LOVE YOUR NEIGHBOR

Matthew 22:39

"And the second command is like it: 'Love your neighbor as yourself.'"

Romans 13:8-10

Owe no one anything, except to love each other, for the one who loves another has fulfilled the law. For

the commandments, "You shall not commit adultery, You shall not murder, You shall not steal, You

shall not covet," and any other commandment, are summed up in this word: "You shall love your

neighbor as yourself." Love does no wrong to a neighbor; therefore love is the fulfilling of the law.

LETTER 72 OF 777 - COMMAND: AWAIT MY RETURN

Matthew 24:42-44

"Therefore, stay awake, for you do not know on what day your Lord is coming. But know this, that if the master of the house had known in what part of the night the thief was coming, he would have stayed awake and would not have let his house be broken into. Therefore you also must be ready, for the Son of Man is coming at an hour you do not expect."

LETTER 73 OF 777 - COMMAND: REMEMBER CHRIST'S SACRIFICE IN COMMUNION

Matthew 26:26-27

"While they were eating, Jesus took bread, and when he had given thanks, he broke it and gave it to his disciples, saying, 'Take and eat; this is my body.'

Then he took a cup, and when he had given thanks, he gave it to them, saying, 'Drink from it, all of you.'"

1 Corinthians 11:23-26

"The Lord Jesus, on the night he was betrayed, took bread, and when he had given thanks, he broke it and said, "This is my body, which is for you; do this in remembrance of me." In the same way, after supper he took the cup, saying, "This cup is the new covenant in my blood; do this, whenever you drink it, in remembrance of me." For whenever you eat this bread and drink this cup, you proclaim the Lord's death until he comes."

LETTER 74 OF 777 - COMMAND: BE BORN AGAIN

John 3:3-7

"Jesus replied, 'Very truly I tell you, no one can see the Kingdom of God unless they are born again."

'How can someone be born when they are old?' Nicodemus asked. 'Surely they cannot enter a second time into their mother's womb to be born!'

Jesus answered, 'Very truly I tell you, no one can enter the Kingdom of God unless they are born of water and the Spirit. Flesh gives birth to flesh, but the Spirit gives birth to spirit. You should not be surprised at my saying, You must be born again.'"

LETTER 75 OF 777 - COMMAND: KEEP MY COMMANDMENTS

John 14:15

"If you love me, keep my commands."

LETTER 76 OF 777 - COMMAND: WATCH AND PRAY

Matthew 26:41

"Watch and pray so that you will not fall into temptation. The spirit is willing, but the flesh is weak."

LETTER 77 OF 777 - COMMAND: FEED MY SHEEP

John 21:15-17

"When they had finished eating, Jesus said to Simon Peter, 'Simon son of John, do you love me more than these?' 'Yes, Lord,' he said, 'you know that I love you.'

Jesus said, 'Feed my lambs.'

Again Jesus said, 'Simon son of John, do you love me?' He answered, 'Yes, Lord, you know that I love you.'

Jesus said, 'Take care of my sheep.'

The third time he said to him, 'Simon son of John, do you love me?'

Peter was hurt because Jesus asked him the third time, 'Do you love me?' He said, 'Lord, you know all things; you know that I love you.'

Jesus said, 'Feed my sheep.'"

LETTER 78 OF 777 - COMMAND: BAPTIZE MY DISCIPLES

Matthew 28:19

"Therefore go and make disciples of all nations, *baptizing them* in the name of the Father and of the Son and of the Holy Spirit."

Romans 6:4-5

"We were therefore buried with him through baptism into death in order that, just as Christ was raised from the dead through the glory of the Father, we too may live a new life.

For if we have been united with him in a death like his, we will certainly also be united with him in a resurrection like his."

Colossians 2:12

"Having been buried with him in baptism, in which you were also raised with him through your faith in the working of God, who raised him from the dead."

LETTER 79 OF 777 - COMMAND: RECEIVE GOD'S POWER

Luke 24:49

"I am going to send you what my Father has promised; but stay in the city until you have been clothed with power from on high."

Luke 24:50-53

"When he had led them out to the vicinity of Bethany, he lifted up his hands and blessed them. While he was blessing them, he left them and was taken up into heaven. Then they worshiped him and returned to Jerusalem with great joy. And they stayed continually at the temple, praising God."

Acts 1:8

"But you will receive power when the Holy Spirit has come upon you, and you will be my witnesses in Jerusalem and in all Judea and Samaria, and to the end of the earth."

LETTER 80 OF 777 - COMMAND: MAKE DISCIPLES

Matthew 28:19

"Therefore go and make disciples of all nations, baptizing them in the name of the Father and of the Son and of the Holy Spirit, teaching them to observe all that I have commanded you."

Romans 10:14-15

"How then will they call on him in whom they have not believed? And how are they to believe in him of whom they have never heard? And how are they to hear without someone preaching? And how are they to preach unless they are sent? As it is written, 'How beautiful are the feet of those who preach the good news!'"

LETTER 81 OF 777 - COMMAND: BEAR FRUIT

John 15:16

"You did not choose me, but I chose you and appointed you that you should go and bear fruit and that your fruit should abide, so that whatever you ask the Father in my name, he may give it to you."

John 15:8

"By this my Father is glorified, that you bear much fruit and so prove to be my disciples."

1 Peter 2:9

"But you are a chosen race, a royal priesthood, a holy nation, a people for his own possession, that you may proclaim the excellencies of him who called you out of darkness into his marvelous light."

LETTER 82 OF 777 - TO SUFFER FOR MY SAKE

I stand beside the Friendly Man outside an old-style farmhouse. The air is crisp and cold, and a man walks praying with all his heart. He cried out for help and begs God for a financial miracle.

Two angels of goodness and mercy walk with him, and I see an angel that I have not seen before walk ahead of him.

The new angel has a massive sword strapped to his back and I can see from my view from behind the angel that his frame is highly athletic and muscular. He is constantly poised for battle. Everything about his body language is like a coiled spring, ready for action. As he moves forward, I see demons scuttle from his path.

The Friendly Man lays His hand upon my shoulder and speaks.

Friendly Man:

"Behold an angel of the Lord. Upon his back is the purity of My Word. And when he unsheathes it, no principality can prevail. For these angels are the ones I send personally.

I am the Lord of the hosts of the armies of Heaven, and of all in Heaven, the angels of the Lord are the ones I specifically commission to go ahead of those who lay down their lives for My Kingdom.

Nothing that My saints face can take Me by surprise, Sameach. I have planned for every outcome and I have prepared the way for those who serve Me as Lord. But all must be careful to guard their hearts in their times of service. For those who give their lives to Me make a covenant of trust with Me and I often need men and women to live lives of humble poverty so that their hearts may be knitted to those who suffer in poverty each day. For if they do not guard their hearts, My angels are reassigned. For those who love Me on condition of provision do not truly love Me.

Some families I call to suffer for a time – not to teach them a lesson – but to use them mightily among those who are in the same position but have no-one to follow out of the darkness.

Indeed, Sameach, I send My most faithful servants into the bowels of hell to show My lost lambs the way out. It is through their testimony in the harshest times that My power is on greatest display.

As I came to be the Way, Truth and Life, I expect My disciples to be the same. For the rich do not see the poor until they have been poor themselves. And when they again forget the poor, I must bring them low again to save their souls and show them their assignments. This is why My personal host are assigned to walk ahead of My righteous servants.

This is what it is to suffer for My sake, so that I may use you as a light in the darkness among those who face what you face but do not know the way out. It is in your poverty and your pain that those who suffer the same fate will connect to you. And for many of them, you are their test that they would bless and help you from their own poverty and pain. For they would never help you if you were rich and whole.

Let those who have ears to hear listen. Not all that befalls you is an attack from the enemy.

The steps of the righteous are ordered of the Lord and I use the righteous to accomplish difficult things. Rejoice and be glad, for great is your reward in Heaven.

Sameach, those who suffer for My sake are the prize flowers in My garden. I am fiercely jealous of them. These who worship and serve Me faithfully in their times of hardship are the jewels in My crown. I can use them and send them where the rest would fold and fall. They are a blessing to Me and their names are known to all the hosts of Heaven.

There is none greater in Heaven than those whom I can use through suffering to reach those who suffer.

Pray for these with a full heart, Sameach. Bless them and celebrate them; for these faithful servants have My heart and I prepare a place for them that exceeds their greatest expectation!

Sameach, rejoice! For they have My heart!"

LETTER 83 OF 777 – THE GOOD SHEEP

The Friendly Man and I watch a farmer get frustrated with his sheep. He beats them with a stick and kicks some of them, hurling curses and threats as he forces them towards their paddocks.

Friendly Man:

"This is not how you should lead, Sameach: to lead anything correctly is to raise it correctly.

This farmer did not raise his sheep correctly and now his laziness has produced a harvest of stubborn sheep who do not love his voice.

The Kingdom of Heaven is like a wise farmer who raises lambs to follow his voice. While they are lambs, they get to know that his voice means blessing, safety, and supply. But a sheep that does not know the voice of the shepherd is a wild thing that teaches its own lambs to be wild.

This is why you must be born again, so that you become as lambs again. For unless you are like a lamb, eagerly following the shepherd and the instructions of the shepherd, you will not walk in the blessing, safety, and supply of the shepherd.

Your earthly fathers raise you to fend for yourselves. And many of you are raised to think like wolves. This is not right. For you are not wolves and I have not sent you out to fend for yourselves. I send you out as sheep among the wolves so that when they bite you, they taste Me.

I am the Good Shepherd. I am not like the hirelings who teach you to know their voice and then steal your wool and meat for themselves. But neither do I ask you to keep your wool and meat for yourself.

I ask you to be as I Am. To freely give of your wool and meat as you have freely received My wool and meat.

I know that it is easier to give of your wool than of your meat. For your wool is a blessing to all who receive of it. Indeed, a good sheep gives of his wool so that all who receive it may be warm and protected. And a good sheep produces so much wool that many are able to receive that wool and sell it to make a good living.

If you are as I Am, you will live to bring prosperity to all around you, and you will not worry about yourself because you know that I will take care of you.

If your enemies slaughter you for your meat, you will not put up a fight because I Am in you and they will break your body, but they will taste My love.

I am the Great Shepherd who resurrects those whom He has predestined to die many times.

Your enemies may win in their own eyes, but every time they rip pieces from your flesh, Heaven records their transgression so that if they do not repent once they have tasted Me in you, My blood in your veins seals their eternal fate.

This is why you must love your enemies. For tainted meat is of no use at the final judgement. Your meat must be sweet to their lips, free from bitterness and resentment. You must forgive as I have forgiven, knowing that the purpose of the meat of My sheep is judgement and the purpose of your sacrifice is that all are given a fair chance to know the Good Shepherd and all are without excuse on the day of judgement.

Keep your wool clean and your meat pure so that all who receive from you are exceedingly blessed.

Raise the lambs to know that their purpose is to walk in the Spirit as vessels that convict the world of its sin, and of God's righteousness, and of the coming judgment. But they do not convict the world with their lips, they convict the world with their actions though selfless love, living the life of a sheep who brings warmth and provision to all around it.

Don't waste your time with stubborn sheep or foolish shepherds who claim My sheep as their own.

Focus on the lambs and have nothing to do with lazy, cruel, or greedy shepherds.

Rejoice in the knowledge that I resurrect the sheep who sacrifice sweet meat to become righteous shepherds.

Those who love Me will feed My sheep and protect them with wise passion!"

LETTER 84 OF 777 – BE A VESSEL OF HONOR

The Friendly Man and I stand outside a gold mine where massive conveyor belts bring ore to a crusher. We stand and watch the process for a while and I marvel at the incredible process involved in extracting the gold down to even microscopic levels.

Friendly Man:

"They do not let a single grain escape the process, Sameach. They hunger for every drop of pure gold that they can extract from the earth. This is what honor is. It will go through every process to extract My Word and My gifts from the vessels whom I send.

Those who bring you revelation that sets you free are worthy of honor upon honor. For what they teach you is worth far more than anything that you can give them. The wise would sit at their feet again and again to extract every drop of freedom, even down to the smallest molecule.

Did you see how the ore was crushed, Sameach? Did you see how it was exposed to acid? Did you see how gold is melted in fierce furnaces? In the same way My Father hides the truth from those who consider themselves wise, and He reveals the truth to those who are as little children, sitting at the feet of teachers through refinement after refinement.

For the gold that I desire to give you are hidden in what is taught to you. A teacher of the Word may bring truth to you for years before you finally see the gold that I have sent to you.

I am your teacher. Only I can teach you what you need. For I am the refiners fire that refines silver and gold. The wisest among you may teach with great competence and skill but they are only the ore crushers. They work diligently and tirelessly to extract truth so that you may be set free.

Only by sitting and listening, and by reading My words over and over, will you begin to receive the hidden truths that My Father has placed in both My Word and all that is created.

To honor vessels of pure revelation, to sit at their feet and listen well – this is only the beginning. For honor is the acid that exposes the gold among the waste. Honor exposes truth that opens the heavens, Sameach. Honor and double honor is the secret to receiving revelation that overrules the laws of space, time, and matter.

The Kingdom of God is like a man who receives a ring of many keys to many locks. And after trying many locks and none opening, the man becomes frustrated and dishonors the one who gave him the set of keys. But if he was wise, he would sit at the feet of the key master so that he may learn what every key does and which keys fit in which locks.

Did you know that some locks require multiple keys pressed together to be inserted simultaneously?

These truths are hidden so that the right doors are opened by the right servants, Sameach. Some doors are reserved for very specific people. And there is a secret door for every person that has ever lived.

This is how God gives grace to the humble. This is how My Father promotes the teachable. This is how He protects them from the proud. He hides the keys and combinations in plain sight. And this is why couriers are so important. We send them to teach combinations for nations and to teach those combinations plainly. But those who dishonor couriers will never open the greater doors to their destiny.

For God opposes the proud. My Father has set locks against them, Sameach. And I have added more locks upon locks. For those who hate My Word and hate My messengers spit upon the price that I paid upon the cross.

Let me speak plainly, Sameach. The selfish will receive nothing from Me. And those who attack My messengers attack Me. This is why you must love them and be kind to them.

Revenge is not yours, it is mine. You did not pay for the right to pass judgement, I did. So do not be angry at those who will not take the keys that I have sent you to give to them.

Bless them, pray for them, encourage them, and feed them.

Be a vessel of honor!"

LETTER 85 OF 777 – YOU ARE THE LIGHT OF THE WORLD

The Friendly Man and I stand on a battlefield in a desert. The ground is littered with dead and dying people everywhere. There are massive lights and medical tents around us. Ahead of us, where the lights do not reach, there is a blanket of darkness. I can hear people crying out as creatures of the night attack them there. On this side of the light, one medical tent has been taken down and a huge hospital is being built in its place.

Troops arrive from the south with huge lighting installations and set them up. When the new lights power up, the darkness in front of us suddenly disappears and we see horrible creatures suddenly scampering away from a lot more wounded and dying people. Doctors and medics run forward to the wounded and dying to tend to them while the troops busy themselves setting up the next lighting installations, tents and buildings.

I am shocked when some of the wounded people actually run away from the light and limp back into the darkness.

Friendly Man:

"I have sent you to be the light of the world. You have been sent but first you have been chosen. I choose many, I call many, but few answer the call.

You are lights that drive back the darkness so that freedom may come to the captives and the blind may see. For this is a war between darkness and light and only light can defeat darkness. The light that is within you is Me. I am the light that you carry. My words illuminate the darkness. You are children of the light. It must surround you, be within you and flow from you.

If you turn off your light, people suffer. This is why you must preach My Word in season and out of season. I am the Word. To speak My words is to speak as I spoke. To speak My words in love is to light up the darkness and rescue those who are tortured by the ignorance of darkness.

Not everyone who claims to know My Word is of Me. If they knew My words, MY words, not just the words of Moses and Paul, but MY words, they would live a life that is to set captives free and opens blind eyes.

You are the light of the world because I am the light of the world. If you remain in Me and My words remain in you, the light that comes from you will bring everything that you need to you.

For the light that is in you will reveal and repel every dark thing that wages war against your heavenly supply line.

Many of you focus on worldly strategies for supply, trusting in the darkness for your abundance. So you seek first the kingdom of darkness and only run to the light when you have no other option.

You must seek first the Kingdom of God. For as you bring more and more people to the light, you bring more and more provision to yourself.

Lack is a product of the darkness, not a product of the light. Where there is light, there is supply. So be the light, walk in the light, and be of the light.

Don't fight the darkness. There is no weapon that can push back the darkness other than the light. Focus with all your strength on being an army of light. For you are children, servants, and disciples of the light.

If you speak in fear, darkness comes from you and lies flow from your lips. But if you speak in faith, your light increases, and you increase the light in others around you.

For faith comes by hearing the Word. If you listen to the light, it increases the light within you. So speak My Word and instruct everyone around you to do the same.

My Word is a lamp to your feet and a light to your path. And when you speak it, it becomes a light and a lamp to those who are lost in the darkness.

I want you to become a professional army that sets up gigantic lighting installations. Be efficient. Be strategic. Be disciplined. Be ready for a great harvest. For when the light illuminates the darkness, a lot of pain is revealed.

My Word is the light. My Word provides, heals and restores!"

LETTER 86 OF 777 – TO LOVE IS TO GIVE

The Friendly Man and I stand in a garden filled with fruit trees and flowers. It is very fragrant and colorful. I really like it here. He reaches up, plucks a perfect peach, and hands it to me.

I take a bite. It is so delicious that it affects me emotionally. The delicious flavors wash away the cares of this world and I cannot stop myself from smiling.

Friendly Man:

"To love is to give. There is no greater thing in all of creation than giving. My Father loved you so much that He gave Me to you. I loved both you and My Father so much that I gave My life to both of you. And then I loved you so much that I gave you the Holy Spirit.

Before We created you, We gave you the earth and every wonderful thing in it. We conspired to create a wonderful place for you with every marvelous thing; every delicious taste, every wonderful aroma, and every beautiful thing. All for you because We loved you before We even created you.

Love creates things to reap a harvest of joy. When a child is punished for doing things that are selfish, the desired harvest that the parent strives for is that the child would be happy one day. For those who cling to things, withholding blessings from those who are in need, are selfish.

They do not love because they do not know Me. If you do not know Me, you do not know how to love. You do not even know what love is. You think that it is just a word to describe an emotion.

If you know Me, you will know that love is a sacrificial gift that produces abundant life. Giving is an expression of love; it is a heavenly state of being. That is why We love cheerful givers. For they give as an act of love, and they eat the spiritual fruit which is the harvest of joy that giving produces.

There are people who are ungrateful and manipulative. Giving to them is painful. But giving to grateful people produces much joy in your own heart.

Now you must listen, Sameach, this is very important!

It is better to give than to receive but I want to teach how important the way you receive is.

Someone who walks in gratefulness, in the full revelation of what is happening when someone blesses them, will open up the floodgates of Heaven! For they will always produce a harvest of joy within the giver. For when someone sows a seed and the seed returns joy to them, Heaven is unlocked with them.

I came to give you abundant life by giving My life so that the Kingdom of Heaven may be established on earth according to the will of My Father. And I sent you the Holy Spirit to teach you all that I have commanded so that the harvest would be righteousness, peace, and joy in the Holy Spirit.

Do you see what the Holy Spirit brings? He brings joy! Because joy is your strength! Love gives to produce a harvest of joy!

Now, when you understand that those who give to you do it because they love you, you will understand that your gratefulness and rejoicing produces a harvest of joy within them. When you steward what you are given and cause it to produce more harvests of joy, you bring great joy to all of Heaven.

The righteous eat the fruit of their deeds. And righteousness is a harvest of love. I sowed love and reaped a harvest of righteousness. You must do the same. You cannot separate righteousness from generosity. For you cannot separate righteousness from love.

You cannot love and be selfish at the same time. That is why churches that jealously cling to their flock are not churches of love. And that is why leaders who refuse to unite are not of Me. They will not give of themselves because there is no love in them. If they were filled with love, they would be generous and selfless.

This is why the only true way to know if someone is My disciple is in their generosity. If someone is My disciple, they will be so filled with love that their generosity will be like a lighthouse in a very dark world!"

LETTER 87 OF 777 – I AM YOUR TEACHER

The Friendly Man and I stand at a well-manicured grave. The tombstone is immaculate: marble, with a statue of the man who lies beneath it. The grass is lush and green and a perfectly shaped little hedge frames his 'final' resting place.

Friendly Man:

"Beneath this green grass you will find an expensive, sealed casket with dusty bones, some dried skin and a foul odor that would turn the hardest stomach trapped within. You have heard Me call the Pharisees whitewashed tombstones and it is important to Me that you understand this message, Abdiel.

Much of what the father of lies teaches his servants is focused upon the outer appearance. Emphasis is placed upon how you look physically, how you dress, how your hair looks, what vehicle you drive, where you live, whether your face and body are attractive and how much money and power you have. But those things are temporary.

The life of those who exist in this realm that is limited by time is but a flash of light in an eternal light show.

Things that are important on earth are rarely important to Heaven. For Heaven is eternal and only eternal things are relevant and important.

I am interested in the unseen parts of you, and not the outer presentation. I tell you this, Abdiel, the outer presentation means absolutely nothing to Me. It is that unseen part of you where your decisions, thoughts and emotions reside that interest Me. For those parts of you are eternal. Everything else can be destroyed by moths, rust and worms.

I want to know if My Word lives in you. My Word is the only thing that can transform you into the eternal heavenly being that I came to shape you into. I sent you the Holy Spirit to make every word plain to you, to open My heart to you and let you see a glimpse of eternity.

You see, Heaven and earth will pass away, but My words will always remain the same. Nothing else in your life has the same value as the words that I left with you. My words are so important that I sent you the Holy Spirit to help you understand them.

Though you receive gifts from the Holy Spirit through the laying on of hands, those gifts are not why My Father sent the Holy Spirit in My Name. No, the Holy Spirit is with you to teach you everything that I said and everything that I continue to say. For My words are your only hope.

Too many focus upon My death instead of upon My life, as if My death was more important than My life. They say that I died for them as if that was all I did. And yes, I died so that you may live, but on the third day I rose again, I rebuilt the temple, and My words continued.

I am your teacher, and the things that I teach you are there to transform you into a piece of Heaven on earth. I am the Way, the Truth, and the Life. My words are light, and they are instructions that cause the darkness to flee from you.

Though they teach you how to resist the devil, they are light in and of themselves. Every word that I have spoken is light that drives the darkness back.

You cannot separate Me from My words, Abdiel. We are one and the same. For I am the Word. To ignore My words is to ignore Me. To ignore My words is to ignore the Holy Spirit.

Many cry out for help, and the Holy Spirit sends people and angels to point them to My words. For My words are the easy yoke and the light burden that I offer. In My words you will find the answer to every challenge that you face. But those who have fallen onto the trap of mammon twist My words and ignore My instructions. And mammon places some under the whip, and some on worldly thrones. But My words bring freedom. And every word that proceeds from My mouth is life.

Those who love My words, love Me. And those who know My words, know that they are loved by Me. For if you know My words, you know Me. And if My words live in you, I live in you."

LETTER 88 OF 777 – THE HOLY SPIRIT IS THE POWER OF HEAVEN

A man strains to lift a big rock in front me. His back is bent, and sweat pours from his brow. His face is twisted into a grimace of concentration as he tries to lift the rock. But nothing happens.

Suddenly the Friendly Man appears next to him and says a few words in his ear. The man stops trying to lift the rock and lifts his tired arms to Heaven instead.

I now see a white dove descend from Heaven and transform into a transparent cloak that settles on the man's shoulders. His entire posture changes as he turns towards the rock again. And this time, he lifts the rock with ease and tosses it to the side.

Friendly Man:

"I would have you know that as the Father and I are one, the Holy Spirit and I are one. As I am in the Father and as the Father is in Me, the Father is in the Holy Spirit and the Holy Spirit is in the Father.

The entire power of Heaven is in the Holy Spirit for He is the same Spirit that hovered over the waters of the deep. And when you are clothed in the Holy Spirit, you are clothed with heavenly power and can do anything that Heaven can do.

Everything that I did, I did by the Spirit, and everything I said, I said by the Spirit. For the Spirit and the Father are one and when the Spirit speaks, the Father speaks.

As I spoke every word commanded by My Father, the Spirit speaks every word that I command. And those who understand who the Holy Spirit is will speak as I spoke and take My words very seriously. For I did not come to gratify the flesh, nor did I come to justify the flesh or the desires of the flesh.

The Kingdom of God is not a kingdom of flesh, it is a kingdom of spirit. And My words are the words of a spiritual kingdom.

The father of lies blinds the minds of unbelievers so that they do not see what is unseen. For My words change what is unseen so that what is seen may follow. But if you keep your eyes on what is seen, you will think that My words are lies and that the Holy Spirit has no power.

I tell you again, the Holy Spirit is the power of Heaven. For the Holy Spirit is the Father as I am. If you are filled with the Holy Spirit, you are filled with both Father and Son, and you must speak as both Father and Son speak.

I did not instruct you to wait to be clothed in a spirit of fear, but I instructed you to wait to be clothed in power from Heaven. And now you are clothed in love, power, and a sound mind.

The Holy Spirit comes to clothe your spirit in these things and remind you of My words, which are the words of My Father, so that you walk in the power of My Word in the spiritual authority of all of Heaven.

Listen well, Abdiel. Those who do not love My Word do not have the Holy Spirit. For the Holy Spirit cannot hate Himself, neither can He hate the Father. For I am the Word. And I am the Word of My Father.

Though many profess to speak in tongues, it does not mean that they are full of the Holy Spirit. You will know who is full of the Holy Spirit by their love for My words. For the power of the Holy Spirit comes through hearing and speaking My Word.

Those who do not speak My Word do not speak by the Spirit, for though they speak things that sound spiritual, but they have no power. They prophesy but they change nothing. They preach but they change nothing. They labor and sweat in a display of fleshly power and move small rocks as if they are big rocks. They only do what is possible with man because the things that are impossible for man can only be done in the power of the Holy Spirit.

Learn well, Abdiel: if you know who the Holy Spirit is and realize that you are clothed in the power of Heaven to speak the words of the Son, you will cast mountains aside with ease.

Stand tall in this revelation, Abdiel, this is powerful truth!

If you desire to have the power of Heaven flow through you, you must meditate on My words night and day and speak them as if they were the words of My Father. That is exactly what they are, Abdiel. They are the purest power of Heaven. This is why you need the Holy Spirit to speak them. They are not the words of man, nor the words of the flesh. They are the words of Heaven and can only be spoken with power when you are clothed in the power of Heaven."

LETTER 89 OF 777 – THE TRUE VINE

The Friendly Man and I walk along a vast vine in a massive vineyard. Every now and then He trims a branch from the vine.

As we walk together, we come across some friendly people eating from the vine. They do not recognize Him as we pass and I can see on their faces that they are so polite in their hunger that they try not to show how bitter the grapes are that they are eating.

Friendly Man:

"Point them to a branch that contains sweet grapes, Abdiel, they are eating from a counterfeit vine."

Me:

"It looks exactly like one of your branches, my Lord, how am I to know which branches are yours?"

Friendly Man:

"Put the fruit under pressure. Squeeze it and see what comes out. If it is sweet, it is My vine. You can tell who is of Me by how they love one another. The only way to test love is to put it through a wine press to see what comes out."

He places a small device with a nozzle in my left hand and a glass in my right hand and I walk down the vineyard crushing grapes with the device, allowing the juice to flow through the nozzle into my glass.

Most of the juice is bitter and the branches seem to shrink away from me when I test their fruit but I finally find a branch that is incredibly sweet and take my glass to the group of people that we passed a while back.

They taste from the glass and it is so delicious that that they can no longer stomach the fruit of the vine that they were eating from. As they depart from their original vine, it turns into a stinging vine and stings them as they walk away. They cry out in surprise and weep at the painful stings.

I am about to take an axe to the vine but the Friendly Man stops me and speaks.

Friendly Man:

"You are not the gardener, Abdiel, My Father is. For He cuts away the withered branches and casts them into the fire. And He prunes the vines with the sweetest fruit so that they may bear even more fruit. But these counterfeit vines are maintained by the father of lies, and it is not yet their time to be thrown into the fire.

The vine spreads His branches across the earth, Abdiel. And you shall know My branches by the sweet, fresh, abundant fruit that hangs from them so generously.

Now the bitter fruit and the dried out branches all appear to come from this same vine but it is not so, they come from a counterfeit vine and many have been pruned from My vine but did not even notice their separation. For they have started their own vineyards in their own image and given those branches My Name.

Not all that is done in My Name is Mine, Abdiel. I am the vine, and you are the branches. The fruit of My branches is the fruit of the Spirit. My branches have My heart for the lost, the poor, the widows, and the orphans.

Many will come in My Name who are not Mine. Be watchful so that you are not led astray, especially by the branches of mammon who say that they are Mine!

Test your own fruit constantly to see if you are still grafted into Me. Those who walk in the spirit will produce the fruit of the Spirit, but those who walk in the flesh will produce the fruit of the flesh. They will say that they are of Me but their kindness is false. When you squeeze their fruit they will attack you and call you a judge. They will sting you and wrap their branches around you jealously. Such are of Satan and have been deceived by their own pride.

My vine is a humble vine, Abdiel. My branches always bear the fruit that I tell them to. For My branches do what I command. If you squeeze them, sweet wine flows from them. And when you drink from them, you are saved, delivered, and healed!

They are as I am and they speak as I speak. They have made My heart their heart and My words have become their words. For these are My branches!"

LETTER 90 OF 777 – DO WHAT I TELL YOU TO DO IN YOUR INDIVIDUAL ROLES

The Friendly Man and I are in a courtroom where a demon sits to judge an argument between some ministers. One minister says that big churches are evil. Others shout that small churches are ineffective. Yet another one shouts that we should meet in small groups.

Now a young man stands up and starts to shout that they are all wrong, that worship is more important than preaching. The contempt these men have for each other is sickening and I step out of the room as respectfully as I can. I simply cannot watch.

The Friendly Man steps outside with me and we stand in silence for a while before He speaks.

Friendly Man:

"You have read that God sets the members of the Body as He sees fit, and you have read that the Body is equipped by apostles, prophets, evangelists, shepherds and teachers. In reading this, it escapes the notice of many of even the elite that it is not their Body, it is MINE.

Though you are an eye, you are My eye. You are an eye on My Body. But if you consider yourself separate from My Body, or better than the ear, you cause My Body to sin and I must pluck you out.

These men argue in futility. For in arguing as they do, they dishonor the whole Body.

Tell me, Abdiel: what does it profit a body if the foot decides that it does not need to go where the head tells it to go? That foot causes the whole body to stumble and must be cut off so that it does not endanger the whole body with its pride.

In thinking that your way is better than somebody else's way, you are already a stumbling block to the rest of the Body.

Hear Me now, Abdiel: there are no works that are more important than love. You must love one another and work together without competing against each other.

Things work differently in Heaven. The first will be last and the last will be first. Things that are done competitively on earth out of pride or spite may achieve results on earth and impress man, but God searches the heart and is not interested in earthly fruit. That which is flesh is

flesh, and fleshly achievements mean absolutely nothing in Heaven. But that which is spirit is spirit and Heaven is a spiritual place where the fruit of the Spirit is the only fruit that matters.

Again, I ask you: What does it profit Heaven if you make disciples in the image of mammon? And what does it profit Heaven if you convert the whole earth into your own image and not Mine? What does it profit the body if the foot forces the eye and ear to be reborn into his image? Must every member of the body do what the foot does, the way that the foot does it because it is bigger than the hand?

I am the head of the Body because I have heavenly perspective. You should stop judging one another and just do what I tell you to do in your individual roles. The foot cannot comprehend what the eye does, and neither can the eye understand what the hand does. They must just do what they were created to do and walk in perfect love. This means that they must walk together respectfully and not think themselves greater than each other or ignore each other spitefully.

A member of the Body that refuses to communicate with the rest of the Body is dysfunctional. It has become a liability and an embarrassment. For the whole body is aware of an eye that is blind or a foot that is lame.

Such ministers might read My Word and teach well, but they are divisive and selfish in their ambition and Heaven sees this. You can hide nothing from God. He sees the wickedness of your heart and your greed is a banner in the spirit. Man may sing your praises, but the fires of hell await your corrupted soul.

Do not be discouraged when you are criticized and persecuted by such people, and always answer evil with good. Encourage the eyes and ears to work together in love. For love covers a multitude of sins and produces unity in My Body. Unity commands blessing!"

LETTER 91 OF 777 – YOU ARE AMBASSADORS OF HEAVEN

The Friendly Man and I are in a church service watching people worship with raised hands.

The band and worship leader are very good at leading people to connect emotionally and the

atmosphere is wonderful.

I watch as the Friendly Man touches the space between a man's shoulder blades and the man

immediately reaches for his wife's hand. She immediately turns to her husband and

impatiently whispers 'I am trying to worship'. I see the waves of rejection go through him and

he is suddenly unable to lift his own hands in worship.

I now notice that the Friendly Man had actually stepped into the man and it was Him using the

man to reach for the wife's hand. He steps out of the man and touches the area between the

shoulder blades again and I see the man take a deep breath and relax. He raises his hands

again and two angels appear on either side of him holding each hand.

The Friendly Man and I are suddenly under a tree outside the church and He speaks.

Friendly Man:

"I am in them and they are in Me. When they reject each other, they reject Me. For the one

who stands beside you is seen, and I am unseen. And if you cannot love the ones you see,

you cannot love what is unseen.

The man's wife has committed a grave sin, Abdiel! She has used her worship as a weapon

against him. She has used Me as an excuse to reject her husband.

Truly I tell you this: I am in you and you are in Me, if anyone rejects you, they reject Me. And if

anyone loves you, they love Me. For whatever you do or say to each other, you do to Me. My

Father and I are one, I am in Him and He is in Me. When mankind rejected Me, they rejected

Him.

In the same way, when you reject each other, you reject Me.

This is My command: That you would love one another.

I want you to speak to each other as if I were standing in front of you. Would that woman

smack away My hand if she knew it was Me beside her?

114

Do not lose sight of your heavenly assignments, for I have sent you as ambassadors of Heaven, and as lights in the darkness. But many of you have become as the world is, forgetting that love must always come first.

Above all, you must love one another.

A husband that is disrespectful to his wife is disrespectful to Me. And he will be held to account for every word that was spoken and every tone that it was spoken in.

There is grace for growth, Abdiel, but those who know better and continue to vomit hell upon those who love them are completely mistaken in their belief that they serve Me as their Lord. For you cannot call Me 'Lord' unless you do as I say.

I have told you to love one another. If you do not know how to love, then you must sit at the feet of teachers who may teach you how. But do not justify your behavior and think that Heaven is happy with you.

I want you to love each other as if you were in Heaven.

Have you not read that your miracles, worship and prayers are like clanging cymbals in My ears when you have no love for your brothers and sisters? Has it not been made clear to you that God is love? Yet you belittle each other and argue as if I cannot see your every move.

God knows how many hairs are upon your head. Do you think He does not know what comes out of your mouth?

Repent then, humble yourself before God and sit at the feet of the teachers that I have shown you.

Those among you who have become so worldly and unkind must not think that Heaven waits for you with open arms. For you do not recognize Me even though I stand right in front of you in your brother. And you will not recognize Me at judgement. Neither will I recognize you. For those who know Me know love.

You are destroyed for lack of knowledge. Go then and learn from teachers to love as you are loved!"

LETTER 92 OF 777 – THOSE WHO LOVE KNOW ME

I stand beside the Friendly Man on a massive farm with all sorts of different produce. We are surrounded by everything from wheat to carrots, cabbage, and fruit trees for as far as the eye can see. There are workers everywhere; tens upon tens of thousands of them from every race and culture that you can imagine.

Friendly Man:

"The Kingdom of Heaven is like this farm. Everyone works together in one kingdom to make sure that there is no lack among you. They are driven by a spirit of consideration, which is the fruit of the Holy Spirit.

Truly I tell you this: those who love take care of each other. But those who turn their back on the Word will take care of only themselves and their own families.

They are like their father, the devil, who makes bold claims and false promises with honeyed lips. They are so fooled by the poison that flows from their honeyed lips that they believe their own lies and justify their own luxury with crafty twisting of Scriptures. But they do not realize that fooling yourself is not fooling God.

Those who love know Me. Those who do not love do not know Me. Those who say that they love but are content while others go hungry have fooled themselves. Those who say that they love Me but do not love others are liars. They have been twisted into the same shape as the great serpent and have become blind to the things of the spirit.

Do not underestimate generosity. For generosity towards each other is the only true sign that you belong to Me and are willing to do as I have commanded.

A man who says that he is too poor to be generous will remain poor. Even if his barns overflow, it will never be enough. For he determines his own worth by how many barns he has. Can he take the barn with him into eternal life? No, he cannot. But still he insists on keeping the overflow for himself while others suffer. He says to himself: 'I have worked hard for this, it is mine!' But many under his employment have worked much harder than he has, toiling day in and day out for a pittance. Such men have sold their souls to the evil one and do not even realize it.

If you are filled with love, only My farm will matter. If you are filled with love, only My vineyard will matter. If you are filled with love, only My Kingdom will matter.

Those who seek first My Kingdom will do as I instruct, and even though they are selflessly generous, My instructions will lead them to more abundance than they can imagine. Only do as I instruct.

If you are careful to do everything that I command you, you will live a life of abundance. For the thief comes to steal, kill, and destroy, but I have to come to give you an abundant life.

Do you not know that My instructions will lead you to a life filled with wonders and joy and possessions of this life and the next that exceed your wildest expectations? Do not underestimate the advantages of obedience to My Word. For My Word is alive and active, answering every situation as if it were written in that very moment. Only walk in love and do as I have instructed you. My words are life. My words are keys. My words are freedom and wealth. My words are joy and peace.

Do you see how these workers are unified in purpose? When you unify around My words, the harvest will always be great.

Let My words replace your words. Let My thoughts replace your thoughts. Do you think I came to earth so that you may continue to suffer beneath the lash of the evil one? Why then do you insist on ignoring My words when they are a lamp for your feet?

Have you fallen in love with darkness? Turn from this foolishness so that your suffering may end and turn to My words. Every word that proceeds from My mouth is from the Father, and every word that proceeds from the Holy Spirit is from Me.

If you are wise, you will heed My counsel and make My Word your everything this very day!"

LETTER 93 OF 777 – PARABLE OF GOD'S VINEYARD VS. MAMMON'S VINEYARD

I stand beside the Friendly Man in a vineyard with the largest grapes I have ever seen. The grapes are easily the size of golf balls and hang in bunches that are the height of a house. There are workers everywhere tending the harvest and I notice how meticulous they are as they go about their business.

Friendly Man:

"The Kingdom of God is like a vineyard, Abdiel. The master of the vineyard comes and walks among the workers for a season and tells them exactly what to do. When he leaves, those diligent workers who walked with him each day carefully write down his instructions so that all the workers who follow may know exactly what to do to produce such perfect fruit until the master walks among them once again.

But as time passes, many workers grow lazy and decide that the words of the master are too difficult to apply. So they leave the vineyard and start their own vineyards saying: 'I do this for the master, it is his vineyard but I shall take a greater share of the profit, for he is not here. Look how it is written by other managers and workers that the master desires me to prosper.'

And many leave the master's vineyard to go and work in these new vineyards because these new vineyards do not require as much work and the new managers require almost no sacrifice.

Now the master of the vineyard requires that the profit of his vineyard overflow to the poor, but the masters of the new vineyards say: 'Is it not written that if you do not work, you will not eat? And is it not written that a man who cannot feed his family is worse than a heathen?' And they twist the words of the teachers and the prophets before them so that they may take a greater portion of the harvest for themselves.

Soon they call forth the workers to gather together in the finest clothes and create seats of honor for the workers who are wealthiest among them. They sing songs to the master of the original vineyard and choose which pieces of his words tickle the ears of their workers for they say: 'We cannot teach these workers what the master truly says, for they shall leave this vineyard offended.'

And they teach the workers to build themselves storehouses and they teach them to love success. For wealth has become their new master and they say 'we can see by the amount of wealth that we have that the master is pleased with us'.

And though they do not know it, they sing to the god of mammon, they use the name of the master of the vineyard, but they see the face of mammon. For they do not rejoice when the master of the vineyard calls them to obedience, but they rejoice when the god of mammon throws them scraps and titbits from his table.

In their gatherings, a man in rags would be considered a fool. Even if the wisdom of Heaven flowed from his lips, they would say 'a fool in rags knows nothing, but a wealthy man has much to share'. And though the wealthy man might be rude and hurt many in his ambition, they justify his heart of stone saying: 'He has the keys to success; he has the right to treat the workers harshly.'

This is how you know the difference between My vineyard and the vineyards of mammon, Abdiel: in the vineyards of mammon, the poor are considered fools and the rich are considered wise. In the vineyards of mammon, those who walk in love and compassion are considered weak.

Watch out for those who teach such lies. For they are of their father, the devil, the master of deception and the seducer of souls.

In My vineyards, those who love, expecting nothing in return, are considered the wisest of all. Those who forgive, those who are quick to repent, those who have compassion on the poor, the widows, the orphans, the captives, the beggars, the sick, and the unwanted – these receive many crowns. Those who are obedient to My words, these are seated upon thrones in Heaven. For they shall be rejected and hated on earth as I was rejected and hated. Do not be surprised by this."

LETTER 94 OF 777 - TO ALL WHO SAY THAT THEY SPEAK FOR ME

I walk upon a path through a forest of fruit trees. The trees are heavily laden with fruit. Around

every tree are angels with bowls and scales. They pluck the fruit and meticulously weigh and

inspect every berry, pod, and capsule.

The Friendly Man walks with a man ahead of me. He speaks to the old man gently and kindly

for a while and then turns to talk to me.

Friendly Man:

"Abdiel, listen carefully and learn, for I shall have this conversation with all who say that they

speak for Me. Few will recognize Me, for though I was among them, they did not know Me.

And though they see Me now, after their time of deciding is over, most will still not recognize

Me. They will sense My authority and call Me 'Lord', but very few know who it is that they are

speaking to."

He turns back to the man and they continue walking. I follow and listen intently.

Friendly Man:

"Ahtslahn, what have you done with what was given to you in this life?"

The old man takes a deep breath and straightens his back, then answers with confidence.

Ahtslahn:

"Well lord, for the first forty years of my life I followed the teachings of pastors who taught faith

and prosperity through works. But in the last twenty years of my life I followed the teachings of

pastors who taught grace, not works. So, I have walked in peace, knowing that my works

cannot produce salvation. I have rejoiced, for I know that I am saved by grace!"

Friendly Man:

"It is good that you received these teachings. What did you do with them? What great things

did you accomplish with your faith and to whom did you show the grace and mercy of which

you learned?"

Ahtslahn:

120

"I paid my tithes and gave sacrificial offerings for the first forty years of my life, but for the last twenty years I gave cheerfully, as I had prepared in my heart. For I learned that the tithe was part of the curse of law. And I am redeemed from the curse of the law, so I no longer need to fulfil the law because of the finished work of the cross!"

Friendly Man:

"It is good that you gave under the teachings of law and under the teachings of grace. But what did you do with the teachings that you received?"

Ahtslahn:

"What do you mean, lord? I helped build three churches and I was on the eldership of two of them."

Friendly Man:

"It is good that you did these things, Ahtslahn, but tell Me what did you do with the faith that you received for the first forty years and the grace that you received for the last twenty years?"

The old man stops walking and his body language suddenly turns defensive. He turns to the Friendly Man and speaks.

Ahtslahn:

"Look, brother, I know that you are some kind of authority in this place, but I do not like where these questions are headed. I am not saved by works. You sound like you are judging me and I was already judged at the cross and found to be righteous because of what Jesus did. I don't have to answer these questions from a false prophet! Get thee behind me, Satan!"

Friendly Man:

"You are without excuse. You know the Word well enough to know that you are saved by faith in what was done for you, yet you have not shown the same mercy to those who have sinned against you. You have sat under the teachings of good men for sixty years and still the fruit upon your tree has been pride.

A man may sit under the teachings of the greatest of all teachers and have a mind filled with the most complex philosophies of theology. But if he has not learned to love, he has learned nothing. Depart from Me, Ahtslahn! For you were given unconditional love, and you showed conditional love. You were given unconditional mercy, and you showed conditional mercy. You were forgiven, and you did not forgive! I stand before you, you do not recognize Me. Only love can see love."

Ahtslahn:

"Wait... wait... who are you lord?"

Friendly Man:

"Depart from Me, for you do not know Me, and I do not know you."

LETTER 95 OF 777 – I AM THE WELL THAT NEVER RUNS DRY

The Friendly Man and I stand on a beach where small waves gently crash into salty foam for a few seconds before dissolving into the ocean once again. A middle-aged man in board shorts stands with his feet in the shallows with small layers of foamy water licking at his ankles.

We stop next to him and the Friendly Man starts to chat to him.

Friendly Man:

"Good day for a swim, friend; the sun is out, and the waves are gentle."

Man:

"Indeed, sir, I will swim beyond these gentle waves until my arms and legs are too tired to bring me back and then I will let the sea take me."

Friendly Man:

"In doing so, you would commit your final act of laying your life down for yourself as you have done since your seventeenth year.

Time and time again, over and over again, I have sent men and angels to instruct you that this pursuit of the praise and acceptance of man would lead to your destruction. But you have insisted on pursuing things that impress the blind and the foolish. And now, after a lifetime of loneliness, instead of laying your life down to serve others, you desire you lay your life down because you have failed in your ambition to be respected by people who do not even know you.

I have surrounded you with people who love you, but they were not enough for you because they were not clothed in the illusion of power of this world. You have pushed your children to pursue success in the world of mammon, but you do not realize that mammon comes to steal their time and their peace. Do you think that this world can offer joy? Do you think that mammon can offer anything more than fleeting moments of laughter in expensive toys that make other mammonites envious?

Truly I tell you this: I could place a beautiful, sleek, luxurious yacht beyond the place in the water where the strength in your arms would give out, and you would find the strength to keep swimming to claim your prize. And a few months later, some bigger yachts would stop next to

yours and your heart would fall. You would say: 'I have the smallest yacht here; these people look down on me'.

Such is the lure of mammon, that man is enticed away from gratitude and peace to pursue things that have no eternal value. For that which has no eternal value has no value in this life either. If you cannot be happy in a shack, you will never be happy in a mansion.

The true wealth that you should seek is the Kingdom, where righteousness, peace, and joy in the Holy Spirit fill the atmosphere of your heart no matter where you are.

Those who carry My peace are temples of peace. But those who carry the hungers of this world are temples of ambition. They drink from the well of mammon and never stop thirsting. For that well might fill the stomach but it is completely empty of nutrition for the soul. The kingdom of mammon can fill the stomach three times a day, and as soon as the body has used up its fuel, it desires more.

In the same way your soul is fed these empty morsels of mammon, and you eat from the table of the approval of man who cares more for his own desire for approval, than your need for it, and in turn hungers for your approval and praise.

I am the Well that never runs dry. My instructions are the Bread of Life. My Word will fill the belly of your soul and satisfy every craving in your body. My grace is sufficient for you, and My power made perfect in weakness. Those who follow Me never need to impress man or seek his approval.

The kingdom of mammon would call a humble man weak. But in My Kingdom, the weak are strong and the poor are rich. The riches of this world are but tools in the hands of the righteous. But the riches of My Kingdom are the joy and peace that come from obedience to My Father.

Come friend, follow Me, learn from Me, and be like Me; for I am gentle and humble of heart and My joy will be your strength!"

LETTER 96 OF 777 – WHERE A MAN SETTLES HIS EYES, HE SETTLES HIS FAITH

The Friendly Man stands on the water in front of me and speaks to me of many things; but I struggle to concentrate because I keep thinking 'how can I build up my own faith to stand on the water like He does'.

Suddenly He stops in mid-sentence and changes the subject.

Friendly Man:

"Abdiel, look down."

I look down and notice that I am standing on the water too. I am so surprised by this that I start to laugh, and then start to prod the water with my toes to see if the water underneath me is not just very shallow or if I am standing on a rock or a piece of Perspex or something.

Then I sink.

The next moment, we are both standing on dry land and the Friendly Man continues speaking.

Friendly Man:

"Those who keep their eyes on Me cannot see the water or the waves. Those who believe in Me and accept My Word as their own cannot believe anything else.

To see the water is to sink into it. To look back at the plough is to return to it. To look back at Egypt is to be filled with it. To look back at Sodom is to be cursed by it.

Where a man settles his eyes, he settles his faith.

To look upon a woman or a man with desire is to commit adultery. To look upon a home that is not yours with desire is to covet it. To look upon another person's life with desire is to envy it. For whatever you look upon will capture your heart and establish a stronghold in your mind.

Those who look at anything but Me cannot follow Me. For even their own children will lead them astray. If you love your children, or your husband, or your wife, or your mother, or your father, or your sister, or your brother, or your friend, or any living thing more than you love Me, you cannot be My disciple.

For whichever person or thing that you love most will command your sacrifice.

I have instructed you all to invite the poor to your table and to go to the captives, but if you give your ear to your loved ones, they will tell you that there is not enough food to feed the poor, or that it is too dangerous, or that they are not called to feed the poor.

Those who love Me will feed My sheep.

Those who love themselves will hate the poor. They will tolerate them but avoid them.

Those who love Me and do what I command have their eyes upon Me and do not even realize that they are walking on water.

I came for the sick, not the healthy. Those who love Me will do the same.

But those who do not love Me will turn their ministries into a den of robbers and thieves, taking from both poor and rich to benefit only themselves. Have you seen how some people will not even continue to support you with a small amount each month when they leave the vision, Abdiel? It is because they only love the poor while they follow you as you follow Me.

Those who follow you will look where you are looking. They do not realize that they are walking on water with you. But when they take their eyes off you, they see the waves and begin to sink.

This is why those who are priests in My house often refuse to walk on the water. Because many who follow them while they follow Me will sink under the waves and go back to Egypt. So these priests say to themselves 'I will start a ministry on dry land where those who follow me cannot sink'.

Who is there for them to save on dry land? Who is drowning on dry land? Those who follow these priests do not need saving. They already have food and many churches to choose from.

Listen, Abdiel, you must continue to walk on the water with Me so that we may save the billions of children who grow up drowning. Anyone who tries to take your eyes off those children does not love Me. Their eyes are not on Me. Their eyes are on the waves and they are filled with fear."

Referencing and Abbreviations

New International Version (NIV) bible was used for scripture referencing where not otherwise stated.

KJV - King James Version

MSG - The Message

----00000-----

To be continued...

Visit us at www.overcomersvision.com